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Narrative Report

Organisational overview and external environment

With an estimated population of 178,994, a coastline of approximately 100 miles, and
encompassing an area of 631 square miles, we have three Areas of Qutstanding Natural
Beauty; Mourne, Ring of Gullion, and Strangford and Lecale.

With approximately 1026 employees and an annual budget of circa £58m made up from
rate income, grants from central government and income generated from specific services,
we are the third largest of the eleven Local Government Districts in Northern Ireland. Our 41
Councillors elected from our seven District Electoral Areas serve a diverse population, 23% of
which is aged 15 years and below, and 15% being 45 years and older.
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During our first four years we established a new governance and organisational structure,
delivered major new facilities and projects for the benefit of residents and visitors, facilitated
agreement with partners on the Community Plan, secured major City Deal investment for the
future and began work on a new Local Development Plan to shape planning across the
District for the years ahead.



Operational model

Each year, the Council must ensure it has the resources it needs to deliver services to the
standard expected by iis ratepayers. Budget plans are submitted to the relevant committees
for approval regarding what the Council hopes to do and how much it will cost. This helps
Council understand how much is required, and taking account of other sources of income,
what 'rate’ needs to set for the district to raise the required money.

The Council's budgeted sources of income for the year ended 31 March 2019 were as
follows;

District Rate from Householders ond Businesses | £52.070k
Grants from Central Government £5,001k
Qther £934k
Total £58,005k

The budgeted income went towards the delivery of the following in the year ended 31
March 2019;
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Governance

The figure below illustrates the assurance framework in place within the Council (approved
annually by the Audit Committee), that provides information on compliance with various
elements of the Councils Governance arangements.
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The only significant change to the governance arrangements within the Council, is the
addition of the Council's Assurance Mapping and Code of Governance document. This has
been presented to the Audit Committee on the 3 July 2019. This was a best practice
recommendation coming from the Audit Committee self-assessment carried out by the
independent chair of the Audit Committee in January 2019. More details surrounding the
Council's Code of Governance and significant Governance issues facing the Council are
detailed within the Council's Annual Governance statement on Page 18.

Risks and opportunities

The Council has an embedded process o manage risks and assist the achievement of its
objectives and performance targets. The Corporate Risk Register plays an integral role in
supporting production of the Corporate Plan and is subject to a quarterly review by the Audit
Committee and the Senior Management Team {SMT).

The Councils Risk Management Policy was updated in November 2017. The key elements of
the risk management process are highlighted below:



Newry, Mourne and Down District Councils Risk Management Process
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The Council maintains a suite of risk registers for significant projects, Directorate areas and a
Corporate Risk Register.

In order to assist the Chief Financial Officer in fulfiling his responsibilities, the Council have put
in place a process for assurance / stewardship reporting. The assurance statements should
reflect any significant internal control issues in the relevant Directorate or Service Area and
are timed to support the Accounting Officer in his preparation of the Annual Governance
Statement. Directors and Assistant Directors complete Assurance Statements on a quarterly
basis.

The Council had 12 Corporate Risks at 3 July 2019, which included:
1. Failure to deliver the capital investment programme for the district;
Breach of legislation in relation to the procurement of goods and services and works;
Non-compliance with legislative requirements (including GDPR);
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4. Failure to effectively manage waste;

5. Failure to provide timely planning decisions;
é

IT services do not support the statutory, strategic or operational requirements of the
Council;

7. Failure to develop a transformational programme of organisational change that
addresses Local Government Reform and delivers efficiencies and improvement, as
well as supporting the redlisation of the strategic ocutcomes of the Community and
Corporate Plans;

8. Failure to adequately react to a major incident which would minimise any negative
conseguences/impact;

9. Failure fo implement an economic development programme to regenerate the
district and attract inward investment due to financial uncertainties caused by the
cument economic and political climate;

10. Lack of standardised Terms and Conditions of employment leading to the failure to
transform services and could impact on the current service delivery;



11. Accidents/injuries may occur if health and safety of service users and staff is not
considered, with a focus on fire risk assessments.

12. If sickness absence is not kept to a minimum, this may affect the delivery of services,
staff morale and lead to increased costs

Controls are in place to manage the risks were possible, and where actions have been
identified to further mitigate the risk, these are being progressed by members of the Senior
and Corporate Management Teams.



Financial Statements

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2019 is as set out in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out in
the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These finoncial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2019 {the Code)
and the Depariment for Communities Accounts Direction, Circular LG 12/2019. It is the
purpose of this foreword to explain, in an easily understandable way, the financial facts in
relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Newry, Mourne and Down District Council finances
during the financial year 2018/19 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows
approved accounting standards and is necessarily technical in parts.

The purpose of the Namative Report is to provide information on the Council, its main
objectives and strategies and the principal risks it faces.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interesis and fo prepare a full set of
group financial statemenis where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures. The Council does not have material interests in such bodies and accordingly is
not required o prepare group financial statements.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 41, shows the movement in the year on the different
reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves' (i.e. those that can be applied
to fund expenditure or reduce rates) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or {deficit) on the
provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of providing the Council's services,
more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Summary
(CIES).

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 40, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the
amount to be funded from rates income. Councils raise rates income to cover expenditure in
accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost, The rates
income position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement,

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 42, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of
the Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council {assets iless liabilities) are
matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The
first category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that the Council may use to
provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use {for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be
used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those
that the Council is nof able to use to provide services. This category of reserves includes
reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses {for example the Revaluation Reserve), where
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves
that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments
between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.



The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are
intended fo contribute to the Council’s future service delivery, Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital
(i.e. borrowing) to the Council.

Basis of preparation

The Councils Statement of Accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and are intended to
present to readers a true and fair view of financial activity during the 2018/19 year. There are
strict controls governing the accounting standards that must be complied with, accounting
policies must be applied on a consistent basis and officers must follow relevant accounting
and disclosure requirements.

There are also materiality thresholds to be adhered to and officers are obliged to make
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and have endeavours to ensure
that as much information as possible has been presented to make the accounts user friendly
as possible within these limitations.



Performance Report

The strategic performance of the Council is incorporated in the Council's Corporate Plan
2015-2019. The Council’s mission is to lead and serve a District that is prosperous, healthy, as
well as sustainable from an economic, environmental and social perspective. The Council will
achieve this by focusing on eight core areas (the Council's strategic objectives):

Our mission Our Priorities
(Strategic Objectives)

our mission as a 1 Become one of the premier tourism
CounCil is tO lead and destinatians on the islang of ireland.
serve a District tha_,t 2 Attracted investment and

supported the creation of new jobs.

is prosperous, healthy
o 3 Supported improved health and
and Sustalnable. weil-being cutcomes.
4 Protected our natural and built
environment.
S led the regeneration of our urban and
Our values rural areas.
ol 6 Advocated an your behalf specifically
- Citizen focused in relation to those issues which really
- Accountable TS AL
. “4 7 Empowered and improved the capacity
Coual?oratlve of our communities.
- suStalnable 8 Transformed and modernised the Council,

providing accessible as well as value far
money services.

- Fair

As we have now reached the end of our first four year term of Council, we are now looking
forward to developing a new Corporate Plan for our second term which will continue to
deliver for local people and the communities.

It has been a challenging period of change during which the Council has continued to
define its new role and purpose, develop new policies and strategies, renew its key
infrastructure, integrate and modernise its services and meet ever increasing statutory
obligations whilst managing expectations and competing demands. The image on the next
page illustrates some of the high level achievements Council has made since the 1 April
2015.

‘Living well together' is published on the Council's website and outlines the Councils
ambitions for the District until 2030. The Council's community planning vision is “Newry,
Mourne and Down is a place with strong, safe and vibrant communities where everyone has
a good quality of life and access to opportunities, choices and high quality services which
are sustainable, accessible and meet people’s need
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Part 12 of the Local Government Act (NI} 2014 sets out a General Duty of Improvement for
local government, whereby all district councils must put in place arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the exercise of their functions. The Council is required to set
annual improvement objectives for the services it provides and to also have in place
arangements to achieve these objectives. The Council recognises ‘improvement’ to mean
activity that enhances the sustainable qudlity of life and environment for ratepayers and
communities.

The Council has also incorporated five key improvement objectives to ensure continuous
improvement in the exercise of the Council's functions. The improvement objectives are
linked to the Community Plan, the Corporate Plan and Directorate Business plans.

Below | have highlighted what the Councils five key performance objectives are, and the key
achievements Council have made since 1 April 2017 o the 31 March 2019;

1. Encourage healthy lifestyles through increased participation in leisure, sport and
recreafionai activilies;

Newry and Down Leisure Centres open and ‘Be Active' campaign launched:;

Increase in total number of attendances across the six leisure centres;

Average satisfaction rating of 73.5% across the six leisure facilities;

3 new play parks open, | park fransformed, and 13 parks upgraded;

Review of ieisure facilities complete;

1,872 children took part in Community Play initiatives;

Options to progress the development of a park in Newry City being considered; and

Multi-stakeholder activity, Promotion and Development Plan launder.

2. Improve economic growth by creating new business starts, supporting the growth of
existing businesses and promoting Newry, Moume and Down as a premier tourist
destination;

371 new business starts, and 352 jobs promoted through business start-up activity;

City Deal for the Belfast Region secured;

Carlingford Lough Greenway between the Weir and Victoria Lock complete;

Development of an Arts, Culture and Heritage Strategy Underway;

Destination Experience Development Plan for the Mournes and Ring of Gullion and

the Mourne Coast launched; and

» The Giant Adventure Festivals atfracted over £252,650 visitors and generated an
estimated £7m for the local economy,

3. Deliver urban and rural regeneration initiatives that will create a Distiict where people
want to live, work and invest in;

Warrenpoint Municipal Park restored and re-opened;

Forkhill Greenspace Pathway Project complete;

Lote night bus service from Newry to Crossmaglen and Kilkeel piloted;

Revitalisation schemes in Newry and Warmrenpoint complete

25 village plans updated, and 20 new Village plans created;

Multiple initiatives launched to improve digital connectivity; and

Consultation on the Preferred Options Paper for the Local Development Pan

complete.

4. Create a cleaner, greener, more attractive District;

* Neighbourhood Service Working Group established;
Decrease in black bin waste and increase in blue and brown bin waste;
Reduction in the amount of biodegradable municipal waste sent to landfil;
Increase in the amount of household waste that is recycled; and
Over £52k awarded to 25 environmental improvement projects through 'Down your
street - Live here, Love here’',
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5. Encourage and empower local communities fo participate in Council engagement

structures and inifiatives.

 Corporate Consultation and Engagement Strategy adopted:

» Community and voluntary sectors occupy 52% of places on community engagement
structures;
Almost £3m awarded through the Financial Assistonce Scheme;
1500 visits to the Ethnic Minority Support Centre in Newry;
£10.5k awarded to community groups through 'participatory budgeting’
programmes;
Ae Friendly status achieved from the World Health Organisation: and

e Youth Councit engaged in the development of strategic plans.

An annual performance assessment of progress against these objectives is contained within
the Corperate Performance Assessment Report to include details of the Council's
performance against statutory performance indicators set by the Depariment. All progress
reports are published on the Council's wehsite.,

Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The resourcing of the Council's activities is outlined in the Annual Report, demonstrating the
funding available and what services this funding provided in 2018/19. There have been
changes to the way we report our financial performance on the delivery on these services in
our financial statements. This change is mainly due to the requirement for Councils to now
report financial performance in line with their decision making structure and the introduction
of the Expenditure and Funding analysis, as set out in note 2.

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to ratepayers how
the funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rates fees and charges) for the
year has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or
earned by Council in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for
decision making purposes between the Council’s directorates. Income and expenditure
accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Financial Peformance

The Council had a deficit budget of £933k in 2018/19, as RPA redundancies were to be
financed from reserves. The actual outturn for the year was £1.4m favourable against
budget. This resulted in a net increase in the General Fund of £445k for the year.

Management Accounts are presented and scrufinised quarterly at the SP&R commitiee. The
overall favourable position for the year ended 31 March 2019 is mainly due to a £1.1 million
underspend in staff costs due to delays in filling posts in the structure. The general gront was
£300k better than budget and rates income finalisation was £887k favourable.
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These underspends were countered by a £610k overspend in waste management costs and
£3580k in capital financing costs.

The Cost of Services on Continuving Operations of £70.7m, as reported in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, also includes the accounting cost of providing services
in addition to the amount funded from taxation. The total net expenditure reported in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is £74.1m.

Borrowings

For the 2018/19 year the Council has an authorised borrowing limit of £98.5m, This is based on
the Council's forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium to long term. In
conjunction with the Council's capital financing requirement of £90.5m, this ensure the
Council only borrows for capital purposes.

During the year the Council repaid external loans of £5.4m. The Council borrowed £11m to
fund ongoing capital projects. At the 31 March 2019, the total amount outstanding on
external loans was £69.75m.

Capital Expenditure

The Council has an ambitious four-year capital programme of £104 million. The four-year
capital programme is updated and approved annually by Council in February each year.
The investment will help Council meet the strategic objectives which are set out in the
Corporate Plan,

The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement includes allocations of £17.1m to fund capital expenditure.

The most significant spend was on the following projects:
s Down Leisure Centre - £3,500k

Kittys Road Community Centre - £300k

Saintfield Community Hall - £1,450k

Play Strategy - £540k

Wamenpoint Municipal Park - £340k

Downpatrick Recycling Centre - £700k

Skrategy and Resource Allocation

The Medium Term Financial Plan was approved by the Council in February 2019, In
accordance with the Local Government Finance Act (NI) 2011, the Chief Executive, as Chief
Financial Officer is required to provide assurance to members on the robustness of the
revenue estimates and the adequacy of the Council's reserves position as part of the rate
setlting process. Detailed estimates were formulated, presented and scrutinised by members,
They took into account past outturn, current spending plans and likely future demand and
pressures.

When setling the district rate for 2018/19 consideration was given to the following key
financial factors and uncertainties for the Council:
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« Current political instability prevents the determination of a regional rate for 2018/19.
Land and Property Services (LPS) have advised that Councils are protected in
legislation and, therefore, are guaranteed payment of their rates in instalments. There
may however be some delay o these payments, and we have been mindful of this
potential delay in our caiculations of working capital requirements as part of our
Prudential Indicators and MRP Statement 2019-20.

» Included within our 2019-20 estimates are various areas of funding received from
central government. We have included amounts on the basis of our previous
arrangements with central government. However, it is important to note that until
such times as a budget is agreed by the Northern Ireland Executive these funding
streams are uncertain.

s With alack of political decision regarding Brexit, the financial implications for Council
are currently unknown, and no provision has been made in the estimates for any
financial implications arising. Furthermore, included within our 2019-20 estimates are
various areas of funding received from the European Union under progrommes which
we have been advised will continue during the 2019-20 year.

* At present there has been no agreed budget by the NI Executive. The absence of an
agreed budget has the potential to impact on the ability of the Department for
Communities {DfC) to issue rates support grant to Councils, Whilst the Local
Government Finance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011, Section 27 states that "the
Department shall for each financial year make a grant under this section to
Councils". Councils have yet to be advised of the total amount of Rates Support
Grant being made available by the DfC for 2019-20.

Qutlook

The Councilis fully aware that it is operating in an increasingly challenging economical and
political environment to deliver business as usual as well as our ambitions for the district under
the Living Well Together community plan.

The main unconirollable risk to the Council in the medium term, is the impact of externally
imposed increases to the Council's pay bill, such as the nationally negotiated pay awards,
the introduction of the apprenticeship levy and the effect of the national living wage. These
combined with inflation levels at 2.4% exert financial pressure on the District Rate which are
beyond the Council's control.

The Council will also face significant year on year increases in costs in several areas such as
waste disposal costs where the arc2] residual contract and interim arangements become

operational.

However, the Council seeks out opportunities to pursue additional funding streams for the
district. adopting innovative approaches to delivering services and working in partnership to
ensure the District optimises its resources. A few of the current initiatives the Council is
currently developing are outlined below:

¢ City Deal - The City Deal model is the UK Government's innovative strategy for
building stronger urban and regional growth via smarter more localised and growth
focused investment decision-making. The chancellor in his budget statement in
October 2018, announced a £350m investment package for the Belfast Regions City
Deal (BRCD), with a further £350m match funding from NI Executive and £150m
contribution from BRCD partners.
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+ The Council have earmarked three significant projects to benefit the district; Newry
Civic Regeneration Project, the Gateway to the Mournes project and the Southern
Area Relief Road.

e Full Fibre Network NI {FFNI} - The Department for Digital, Culture, Media and Sport
(DCMS), Local Full Fibre Networks Programme (LFFN) is designed to stimulate
commeicial investment in full fibre networks in rural and urbon locations across the
whole of the UK. On 18t February 2019, NMDDC officers representing all the Councils
in the FFNI consortium, presented the collaborative LFFN bid to the DCMS. The bid was
successful. This funding of £15m aims to deliver full fibre to 880 council and school sites
by March 2021, using the “Public Sector Anchor Tenancy" approach. This represents
Phase 1 of a proposed longer-term programme of fibre related investment.

» The Peace IV Programme —is a cross-border initiative designed to support peace and
reconciliation in Northern Ireland and the Border region. Funding of £4.7m has been
awarded from the European Union PEACE IV programme managed by the Special
EU Programmes body (SEUPB).

These initiatives enhance the Council's opportunities to develop services, deliver on our

key objective for the District and grow the District to make it a leading destination 1o live,
work, visit and invest.
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Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities for the Statement of
Accounts

The Council's Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 a council shall
make arangements for the proper adminisiration of its financial affairs. A council shall
designate an officer of the council as its chief financial officer and these arangements shall
be camied out under the supervision of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015 the Council, or @ Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the
accounts.

The Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern
Ireland) 2015, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's
Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Depariment for Communities.

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows
for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

= observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities including
compiliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom

» follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis, and

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Cfficer is also required 1o:

e keep proper accounting records that are up-to-daote, and
* take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
iregularities.

17



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Responsibility

The Council's Annual Governance Statement follows DIC accounts directions and where
applicable the factsheet on Governance Statements issued by NIAQ in 2013, and comprises
the following sections:

e Scope of responsibility:

The purpose of the governance framework;

The governance framework;

Review of effectiveness;

Update on significant governance issues that were declared at the year-end 2017-18;
and

» Significant governance issues for the year end 2018-19.

Newry, Mourne and Down District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and
effectively.

The Council also has a duty under Local Government {Best Value) Act (Northern Ireland)
2002 to make arangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangemenis for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, which includes arangements for the management of risk.

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the
principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Govemance in Local
Government (2016 edition). This statement explains how the Council has complied with the
code and meets the requirements of Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations
{Northern Ireland) 2015 in relation to the publication of an Annual Governance Statement.

The Purpose of the Governance Fframework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values,
by which the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts
to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables the Council to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to
the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives and can therefare only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of eftectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and pricritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be redlised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
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The governance framework has been in place at Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
for the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the financial

statements.

The governance framework

Our committee siructure, which is based on the full council and six standing commitiees is

illustrated and described below.

Council Commitiee gnd Management Structure

Audit
Committee

AHC
Committee

Committee

Planning
Committee

NS
Committee

SPR
Committee

Community Planning & Wi.f Executive H Democratic
Parformance Services
Director Director Director Director
Enterprise, Regeneration Active and Healthy Nelghborhood Services Corporate
and Tourism (ERT) Communities {NS) Services
{AHC) (CS)

Through the work of the committees, our members aversee the work of the Council. All
committee decisions need to be ratified by the full Council except where committees have
been granied delegated authority to make decisions. The full Council, which consists of 41
elected representatives, is the overarching decision making body.

The ERT Committee is responsible for the development and implementation of strategies,
policies, programmes and projects directed to the regeneration and growth of the district in
the context of the outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans. The ERT
committee is also responsible for all matters pertaining to policy and legisiation in relation to
building control and licencing issues.

The AHC Committee is responsible for the development and implementation of strategies,
policies, programmes and projects aimed at improving life at local level in the context of the
outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans.

The Audit Committee provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's
risk management framework and associated control environment. It provides an
independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non financial performance, which is
relied upon by Council, to the exient that it exposes it to risk and weakens the conirol
environment.
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The NS Committee is responsible for the development and implementation of strategies,
policies, programmes and projects aimed at ensuring the waste service is delivered across
the district in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans.

The Planning Commitiee is responsible for all of the Council's planning functions, except
those matters, which are delegated to Officers or reserved to full Council.

The SP&R Committee is responsible for setting the strategic direction of the Council through
the development of its corporate plan and other key corporate and cross cutting strategies
and policies. It will also ensure effective use of resources and value for money for ratepayers,
ond oversee the Council’s relationship with a number of key agencies and partners,

In addition to the committees listed above, there are also working groups established to
support the work of Committees.

The Council's Assurance Framework {referred to previously in the diagrom on page 5)
illustrates how different sources of assurance and related key elements/control measures
combine to enable Council to monitor its governances arrangements and produce the
information which enables Council to prepare the Annual Governance Statement.

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the seven core principles set out in the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework {2016 edition). How we meet these seven core principles is
reviewed and updated annually and a summary of the key elements of our governance
framework are set out below:

A. Behaving with irtegrih | sui Openness
Council and Committee meetings open to the
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D. Optimising the achievement of outcomes E. Developing Capacity and Capability
> Corporate and Directoraie plans ¥» Organisational Development
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Member Leadership Progromme
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Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the
Senior Management Team within Council who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the governance environment, the Internal Audit’s annual report, and also
by comments made by the external auditors.

Recommendations arising out of internal and external reviews are agreed with management
before finalisation to ensure that they will achieve the desired enhancement to the control
environment and are practical solutions. Registers are maintained of all outstanding
recommendations and these are circuloted at Audit Committee and to CMT/SMT. Follow up
reviews are also reported to the Audit Committee.

The Chief Executive has responsibility for preparing this Annual Governance Statement. In
preparing this statement, he has considered the governance framework and system of
internal controls in place. The Chief Executive leads the Council's SMT to collectively have
involvement in and oversight of the processes involved in maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the governance framewaork. In producing this staterment, full regard has
been made to the register of interests for both Councillors and employees, reports of the
internal and external auditor, the Corporate Risk Register, Assurance Statements provided by
each Director and Assistant Director for year ended 31 March 2019.
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The Council itself maintains overall control of the governance framework and has been
involved, for example, in approving the implementation of the risk management and
statement of assuronce processes. Primary responsibility for overseeing the governance
process is the responsibility of the Audit Committee as a standing committee of Council. The
role of the Audit Committee extends to receiving reports from the Council's internal and
external auditors to ensure that any issues raised are subject to due consideration and are
addressed by officers on a timely basis. In considering this Annual Governance Staternent,
the Audit Committee have considered the review of the govermnance framework and system
of internal controls prepared by the Chief Executive.

The following process has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the
governance framework:

» the Members: A committee structure is in place within Council which provides
elected members with a democratic mechanism by which to approve and scrutinise
Council Business. Positions of responsibility and Committee members are
appointed as per the Local Government Act (NI) 2014 and are reflective of the
broad political make up of the Council as elected.

The main decision making bodly is full Council of elected Members who are ultimately
responsible for ensuring effective governance arangements are in place in order for
Council to achieve its goals and objectives. Council meets monthly in statutory
meetings. Council has established sub-Committees of Council to consider in further
detail its operations in line with specific areas of responsibility, as set out in the
Constitution. These Committees of elected members are informed by Council
Officers.

Council business is governed by Council Standing Orders and Committee Terms of
Reference to ensure that the transaction of the business of Council and its
Commitiees is properly regulated and conducted in an efficient, fair and legal
manner.

» fthe Senior Officers: The Chief Executive ensures that all Council services and activities
are delivered in accordance with the aims of the Council's Corporate Plan. The Chief
Executive is supported by a Senior Management Team who meet at least monthly to
monitor strategic direction and good governance across the District. During 2018-19 a
meeting of the CMT occurred monthly. Directors meet regularly with senior members
of their Directorates to ensure that all staff are aware of Council's priorities and that
risks are being appropriately managed.

Quarterly Assurance Statements are completed by Assistant Directors and Directors {o
give the Chief Executive assurance over the controls that are in place. The Assurance
Statements also make the Chief Executive aware of any of the risks arising which may
have a negative impact on the Council.

* The Audit Commiitee: The Audit Committee provides an important source of
assurance to those charged with governance about the Council's arrangements for
managing risk, maintaining an effective control environment, and reporting on
financial and other performance. The Audit Committee has an Independent
Chairperson and met on five occasions during 2018/19 {one special audit committee
in February 2019). The Audit Committee Terms of Reference were revised in February
2019 and sets out the purpose and the roles and responsibilities of commitiee.

The effectiveness of Audit Committee was reviewed at the Committes on the 15
January 2019. This was done using the National Audit Office Seli-Assessment Checklist
(September 2017).
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The Committee was satisfied with its overall performance when compared against
the checklist. The NAO checklist is the benchmark for best practice. The Audit
Committee Annual report 2018/19 was presented to the 3 July 2019 Audit Committee
to support the completion of the Annual Governance Statement,

» By Internal Audit: The Iinternal Audit function is caried out by an independent firm in
accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. I provides assurance and
advisory service to assist Council achieve its objectives and improve the effectiveness
of internal conirol, risk management and governance processes. Nine internal audit
assignments were carried out in 2018/19, plus a follow up review of the 2017/18
recommendations.

s Ofther explicit review / assurance mechanisms:

o

Health and Safety: By reviews of Health and Safety by professionally qualified
officers, the Corporate Health and Safety Committee, and various Health and
Safety sub committees.

Risk Management: Risk Management is embedded across all activities of the
Council and is a continuously evolving process, which is monitored closely by
the Audit Services Manager. The Corporate Risk Register is presented quarterly
to both SMT and the Audit Committee.

External Funding: External funding throughout the year is subject to
independent audits from the relevant funders i.e. European Court of Auditors,
Government Departments, SEUPB.

Local Government Audit: Work carried out by the Local Government Audiior
during 2018/19 is also used by the Council as an additional assurance
mechanism. The Councils Performance Improvement Plan has also been
externally audited by the NIAO and received o satisfactory Assurance rating
in 2018/19.

The Transport Regulation Unit and the Freight Transport Association undertook
a review of the Council’'s compliance with, and management of, controls in
respect of certain aspecis of the Operators Licence on direction from
Council.

The Accounting Officer has also been advised on the review of effectiveness of the
governance framework by the Audit Committee and a plan to address any weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.
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Update on Significant Governance Issues that were declared in 2017-18

Five issues were dectared last year and four of these continue to be declared as issues in this
year's statement (Procurement and Contract Management, IT Transformation Project,
Economic and Political climate and Belfast City Region deal).

An update on the remaining governance issues from 2017/18 is provided below:
1. General Data Protection Regulation {GDPR)

The GDPR came into effect in the UK from 25 May 2018. The GDPR aims primarily to give
control to citizens and residents over their personal data and to simplify the regulatory
environment for international business by unifying the regulation within the EU.

Council have undertaken considerable work to ensure that it is compliant with GDPR. The
compliance structure is now complete and all posts have been filled. An independent
organisation were procured to commence a gap analysis on what the Council needed to
do to be compliant with GDPR. The final audit report was completed in May 2018, The
implementation of the data audit recommendations to ensure Council meets its obligations
under GDPR are currently well underway. Mandatory Data protection / GDPR training was
rolled out to all staff and members, and this was completed in March 2019. A new Access to
Information Policy and Procedure was approved by Council in July 2019,

Significant Governance Issues in 2018-19

The significant governance issues for 2018/19 were identified through the review of significant
risks in the Corporate Risk Register for the year ending 31 March 2019, consideration of
significant events / issues, internal / external audit reporis and a review of the Directors
Assurance Statements.

Internal Audit conducted nine reviews during 2018-19. Eight Internal Audit Reviews received
a satisfactory assurance rating and one report received a limited assurance rating.

Internal Audit also undertook a follow up review of recommendations made in their 2017/18
reviews. The review identified that, out of the 48 accepted recommendations, 8
recommendations were fully implemented, 21 recommendations were partially
implemented, 17 recommendations were not implemented, and the remaining 2
recommendations were no longer accepted or could not be tested.

The internal audit assurance work as detailed in the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 was
compieted in full. Internal Audit's Annual Opinion during the period from 1 April 2018 fo 31
March 2019 was that “the Council's systems in reiation to internal confrol, risk management
and governance were, in general, adequate and operated effectively and can provide
safisfactory assurance in relation to the effeclive and efficient achievement of the Council's
objectives.”

The internal audit report which received a limited assurance rating is summarised below:

Facilifies Management — Canieens
Internal Audit concluded that there were a number of key controls absent from the Council's
systems for facilities management at the canteens. Specifically. the review identified a lack
of basic control operating over the cash collected particularly at the Monaghan Row
canteen and a failure to fully investigate discrepancies on a daily basis. Internal Audit clso
considered that further work is also needed to consider the efficiency of purchasing and
meal planning at the canteens and a need to have a strategic view about the longer term
viability of operating the canteens.
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Internal Audit concluded that in these circumstances, the remaining controls in place can
only provide a limited level of assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievement
of the Council’s objectives in relation to Facilities management at the canteens. The Audit
Services Manager camied out a review of the recommendations in September 2019, some
recommendations have still not been implemented. Assistant Director and Director made
aware and Audit Services Manager will continue to monitor the progress made.

The Audit Services Manager will continue to follow up on the 2016/17 and 2017/18 Internal
Audit Recommendations which have not yet been implemented, and will also follow up on
the 2018/192 recommendations prior to the Independent Internal Auditor carrying their own
follow up review during 2019/20. The progress on the implementation on Internal Audit
recommendations will be reported quarterly at the Audit Committee along with an update
on outstanding extemal audit recommendations.

In addition to those areas, noted by Internal Audit above, the following governance issues
have been identified:

1. Procurement and Contract Management

Procurement has remained a significant risk in the Council’s Corporate Risk Register at
year-end. The risk that the Council may breach legislation in procuring goods and
services could affect the Councils ability o deliver its objectives and achieve value
for money, open the Council to legal challenge and could result in reputational
damage.

Internal Audit gave purchasing, procurement and contract management a limited
assurance rating during the 2015-16 year. During the 2018-19 financial year Internal
Audit Completed a Stage two of their procurement audit which focused on the
compliance with the Councils revised procurement policy (January 2018). Both the
stage one audit (review of the revised policy during the 2017-18 year) and stage two
audits received a safisfactory assurance levels. At the January 2019 Audit Committee
it was agreed to remove the procurement update from the being a standing agenda
item due to the progress made over the last number of years. Within the 2018-19
financial year, the controls around procurement have been strengthened
significantly;

» The Newry, Mourne and Down District Council Procurement Policy and
Procedures was approved by the SP&R committee on the 14 December 2017
and subsequently ratified by Council on the 8 January 2018. Business Case
templates and procedures were approved in February 2018 by SMT.

¢ [n June 2018, a procurement expert delivered training to relevant stafi. The
training covered drafting business cases, drafting tender documents, tender
evaluation and fraining on the Councils e-procurement system,

= A new procurement fraining schedule was delivered to all staff. This
commenced in February 2019 and was completed in May 2019. The five
separate sessions targeted particular officers proportionate o the value of
procurement exercises they regularly undertake.

Even though considerable progress has been made, we are still highlighting
procurement as a significant issue as the policy and procedures continue to imbed.
However, the main concern going forward is in relation to contract management,
There is a detailed section on contract management within the new policy to assist
Council Officers and further training and information will be rolled out to all staff in the
coming year. Internal Audit will also have an audit focusing on contract
management within their four year internal oudit plan 2019-2023.
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2.

IT Transformation Project

Council is currently undertaking an IT transformation project to improve the [T
environment and enhance our IT services. This is a long-term project and uniil a time
when the IT Strategy is fully implemented, we are actively working at managing risk in
this area and ensuring our curent (T systems and IT security is sufficiently robust to
meet the needs of the organisation. As mentioned above the Disaster Recovery and
progress on implementing the Councils IT strategy internal audit received a limited
assurance. The follow up internal Audit of the report above highlighted limited
progress in implemented in progressing the recommendations (3 recommendations
not implemented and 4 only partially implemented}. An IT Programme Group has
been established and all recommendations falling out of the internal audit report in
relation to the IT Strategy will be implemented via this group.

The IT department have established an IT Service Catalogue, which details all the
Council's IT architecture and provides a rating for the impact a service failure would
have on Council operations to ensure critical processes remain operational. The
prioritisation of IT projects is reviewed annually by SMT and progress reports are
reviewed regularly.

Economic and Political Climate

There is a major external influence on the Councils future financial security and that
will be potentially impacted by the UK's progress in negotiating its exit from the
European Union and agreeing its future trading amrangements. The domestic
economy has remained relatively robust since the 2016 referendumn, but there are
indications that uncertainty over the future is now weighing on growth. Economic
growth is therefore forecast to remain sluggish throughout 2019/20.

Northern Ireland no longer has a devolved governmenit, This could have a potentiol
impact on the ability of DfC to issue the Rates Support Grant to Councils, ond how
significant the reduction on the Rates Support Grant will be year on year. There is also
a possibility that Local Councils could be given greater responsibilities in the absence
of devolution.

The Council established a Brexit Member's forum in March 2018. The forum consists of
Senior Officers and Members. Their role is to create contingency plans to monitor and
take actions to reduce the risks arising due to the cument levels of unceriainty,
Council also have established a Brexit Task and Finish working group which has a
specific risk register for potential Brexit outcomes.

At the September 2019 SP&R Committee the Assistant Director of Estates and Project
Management brought a paper which detailed an update on the Council’s Brexit
Planning and provided a copy of Council's specific Brexit Risk Register. The Brexit
Working Group met to develop a Council specific risk register to identify high level
risks as a result of a no deal Brexit, and to consider what mitigation measures are
cumently in place and what measures need to be introduced to reduce the impacts
of Brexit to our District.

Belfast City Region Deal

Appropriate governance and programme management arrangements were put in

place o develop the Belfast Region City Deal (BRCD) proposition, which was

presented to UK and NI governments in September 2018. The chancellor in his

budget statement in October 2018, announced a £350m investment package for the

BRCD, with a further £350m match funding from NI Executive and £150m contribution
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3.

frorn BRCD partners. Belfast City Council, as the lead authority, are now putting in
place a dedicated programme office and revised Governance Structures to deliver
the second phase of the programme, which includes the development of Outline
Business Cases (OBCs) for all projects, and will result in a financial agreement being
drawn up between BRCD and the UK government and NI Executive.

Work will also continue on the governance arrangements and assurance framework
which will be put in place for the delivery phase of the deal, which is likely to
commence in 2020.

NMDDC have governance structures in place via Project Steering Boards, which will
have over sight on the design, development and implementation of the regeneration
and tourism capital projects which Council are the lead on. Council decisions on City
Deal initiatives will be tabled at the ERT Committee, which will be supplemented with
a focused City Deal councillor reference group. At a regional level Advisory Boards
will be established under each of the City Deal pillars, and an NMDDC official will be
represented at each of these.

Big Screen Investigation

An investigation by our internal auditors into the Council's procurement, and erection
of the ‘Big Screen’ in Newry raised serious concerns around the processes surrounding
the procurement and erection of the Big Screen by the legacy Newry and Mourmne
Council, as well as raising concems regarding the provision of information for audit
purposes and under Freedom of Information relating to the Big Screen.

An amount of £23,199 provided to Newry and Mourne Council as a contribution to
the Big Screen project was repaid to the Department for Communities in April 2019 as,
following the investigations findings, they deemed the expenditure iregular.

A lessons learned report was produced during the course of the investigations which
has been widely shared with relevant staff. Additional training has been provided to
staff in the areas of procurement, GDPR and code of conduct. Further training on
fraud, whistleblowing and conflicts of interest is planned for Autumn 2019,

Planning Backlog

The failure to deliver timely planning decisions is highlighted as a risk within the
Corporate Risk Register. Recently the planning backlog has been increasing rather
than decreasing. The number of live applications at the end of May 2019 was 1223.

Internal Audit completed an audit of the planning function during 2017/18 and this
received a limited assurance rating. Internal Audit concluded that there are currently
a number of key controls absent from the Councii's systems for Planning, particularly
in relation to: the Council's performance against the legislative targets; the
completeness and validation of the documentation supperting planning applications
and enforcement actions; the lack of clarity in respect of key performance indicators
within the Planning Department; and the level of non-compliance by the Council
with its own planning and enforcement procedures. At May 2019, three
Recommendations remained not implemented and two recommendations only
partially implemented.

Senior Management are considering ways forward to ensure compliance with policy
and legislative targets while maintaining the number of live cases to an acceptable
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level. Internal Audit are also going to carry out a review of the management of
planning applications in the 2019/20 year.

7. Absenteeism

In July 2019, The SMT decided to include a new Corporate Risk; ‘if sickness absence is
not kept to a minimum, this may affect the delivery of services, staff morale and lead

to increased costs'. The Council's level of sickness absence is currently the highest
among the Council's in Northern Ireland, this was highlighted in the Local
Government Audit Report 2019. Management are highlighiing this on the Corporate
Risk Register to put in place actions to bring the average number of days down to an
acceptable level. As well as reminding Line Manager of their duties in relation to
absence management, Council are seeking to infroduce a Managing Attendance
Procedure which will replace six legacy absence management policies which are
currently | operation.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further
enhance our governance arangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the
need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Signed: @ ) ngvL\ - Date: 26/9/2019

CHAIR

Signed: db’ Date: 26/9/2019

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Leading member & Chief Executive on behalf of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODRIES'

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201%

INTRODUCTION

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government

bodies to prepare a remuneration report as part of the stalement of accounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS
COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and commitiee members under Part 3 of the Local Government
Finance Act (Northern Irelond) 2011 and The Local Governmeni {Paymenis to Councillors) Regulations {Northern
Irelond} 2012, which came into operation on 1 April 2012,

Guidance and determinations on Councillors' Allowances applicable from 1 April 2018 were issued by lhe
Department for Communities on 31 July 2018 (Circular LG 12/2018). Details of the allowances paid to individual
councillors are published on council websites,

Following local elections on 2 May 2019, 4462 councillors were elecled 1o the 11 councils for a four year ferm. Newry,
Mourng and Down Dislrict Council had 41 councillors in 2018/19.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees emploved by the Council is determined by the Council in line with thot
determined by the National Joint Council (NIC) for Local Govemnment Services. Senior staff are those staff who are
members of the Executive Managemeni Team/Senior Management Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Siaff Commissions' Code
of Procedures on Recruilment and Selection, which requires appointment 1o be on merit and on the basis of fair and
open compelition.

Unless otherwise staled below, the officials covered by this repori hold appoiniments which are open-ended.

INDEPENDENT MEMBER - AUDIT COMMITTEE

Joseph Campbellis an Inependent Member and Chairpersen of the Audit Commitiee. The rofe is 1o help promote
the highesl standards in the financial management of the Council and thereby ensure the accountabilily of public
funds. It1s a femporary position until 31st March 2019, A payment of £500 is paid per meeling (this includes
preparation time of £250 and £250 far the meeting) plus tfrave! and expenses.
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances, under Part 3 of the Local Government Finance Act
{Northern Ireland) 2011 and the Local Government {Paymenis to Councillors) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2012

was,

Table 1: Tolal Alowances paid to councillors {audited information)

Allowance

201819

207/18

Total Allowances

Number of Councillors
receiving the

Total Allowances

Number of
Counclliors receiving

. Allowance . the Allowance
Basic Allowance 598,388 4] 592,631 44*
Special
Responsibility 72835 24 71,407 25
Allowance
Chairperson/Mayor
Allowance 19,770 2 19,770 2
Vice Chairperson/
Deputy Mayor 6,170 2 6,170 2
Allowance
Mileage Allowance 75,403 32 68,127 33
Public Transport
and Other Travel 17.591 22 17,441 20
Incidentals
Subsistence 5,228 9 5,407 14
Courses/
Conferences Visits
[registration & 5810 18 10,768 16
joining fees)
Dependents’ Carers
Allowance 1.0 ] L) :
TOTAL 802,211 - 792,775 -

* Please nole: In 2017/2018 44 Councillors received an ollocation of the 41 Basic Allowances as 3 Councillors
resigned mid-year and their replacements received the balance of those allowances.

Details of the allowances paid to individual counciliors in 2018/19 are published on the council website at

www.newrymourneanddown.org/councillors-allowances-and-expenses.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Team/$enior Management Team. The
following table provides details of the remuneration paid to senior employees:

Table 2: Remuneration {including salary)[avdiled information]

{Unlil 30/06/2017)

Officers 2018/19 2017/18
Salary (Full Bonus | Benefilsin| *Pension Total Salary (Full| Bonus |Benelilsin| *Pension Total
year Payments| kind (fo |pepetits (to year | Payments | kind (1o |penefits (to
equivalent in nearest nearest equivalent nearest | poarect
brackels £1 00) £~['000) in brackets £100) £1 '000)
where £'000 where £'000
applicable) £'000 |applicable) £'000
£'000 £'000
Liem Hannaway
Clerk & Chief 115-120 | 5-10 400 -8,000 | 120-125 | 115-120 - 300 -6,000 115-120
Execulive
Edwin Curlis
'E)Ilrect.or of Strategic| 55 _ 75 85- ;%}5”5 {22; 55- 60 (80 - 55 - 60 {80 -
P;’f‘:f';% rfce (il 90 full year 5 100 21,000 equivglen ;| 85 full year = 100 12,000 |85 full year
equivalent equivalent equivalent
14/01/2019} g } J d ] i !
Michael Lipsetft
Director of Actlive
Health & 85-%0 100 34,000 85-90 80-85 - 100 25,000 80-85
Communities
Marie Ward Director
of Enterprise,
Regeneralion & 85-90 - 100 29,000 85-90 80-85 - 100 25,000 B80-85
Tourism
Dorinnla Carville
Direcforof 80 - 85 : 100 31000 | 80-85 | 80-85 . 100 25000 | 80-85
Corporoie Services
Roland Moore
Dirfectorof 5-10{75- 5-10(75-
Neighbourhood 80 -85 - 300 84,000 80-85 |80 full year - 800 4,000 |80 full year
Services equivalent) equivalent)
Canice O'Rourke -
|pirecior of 20-25(75- 20-25(75-
Regulglory & _ - z 5 s - 80 full year - - 3,000 B0 full year
Technical Services equivalent) equivalent)

Please Note: From 13/06/2017 to 28/02/201/ the posilion of Direclor of Regulatory and Technical Services was undertaken by Mr Adom
Wilkinson on a consultancy basis. Mr Wilkinson received remuneralion of £119,381 plus expenses of £732, {otalling £120,113,

* The value of pension benelits accrued during the year is calculated as (the real increase in pension muliiplied by
20) plus {the real increase in any lump sum) less {Ihe contributions made by the individual). The real increases
exclude increases due to inflation and any increase or decrease due to a franster of pension rights.
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Councils are required to disclose the relationship belween the remunerafion of the highest paid member of the
Executive Management Team/Senior Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of The highest paid member of the Execulive Manogement Team/Senior Management
Team in the finoncial year 2018/19 was £115k - £120k. This was 5.45 times the median remuneration of the workforce,

which was £21,176,

Table 3: Relalionship between ihe remuneration of the highest paid member of the Execulive Management
Team/Senior Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workferce {audited Information)

lRoﬁo

2018/1% 2017/18
Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the 115-120 115-120
|[Executive Management Team/ Senior
Managemeni Team
Median Total Remuneration £21,176 £20,571
5.65 57

In 2018/1%. no employees received remuneralion in excess of the highest paid member of the Execulive
Management Team/Senior Management Team.

lotal remuneration includes solary, bonus payments and benefiis in kind.

Salary
“Salary"” includes gross salary, overtime, and any gralia paymenis.

Bonus Payments
Bonus poyments are based on performance levels atlained and are made os port of the appraisal process. Bonuses
relale to the performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. The bonuses reported in

2018/19 relale to performance in 2018/19.

Benelits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefils provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue
and Cusloms as a faxable emolument.

Exit Packages for stalf
The number of exit packages provided o all staff by the Council, together with total cost per band and total cost of
the compulsory and other redundancies are set oul in the table below:

Table 4: Exit Packages in 2018/19 {audited Information)

2018/1% 2017/18
Number of | Number of Total Total Cost of} Number of | Number of Total Total Cost
Compulsory Other Number of | Packages | Compulsory Other Number of of
Severance Redundancies |deparures Exit ineach JRedundanci| deparures Exit Packages
Package Cost Band agreed |Packagesin| Cost Bond es agreed Packages { in each
each Cost £'000 In each | Cost Band
Bond Cost 8ond £'000
£0 - £20,000
£20.001 - £40.000
£40,001 - £40,000 2 2 102,485
£60.001 - £80,000 ] 1 65,250 1 41,75%
£80,001 - £100,000 2 2 188,418
!EIO0.00I - £150,000 ] 1 100,691
£150,001 - £200,000
Total 0 4 4 354,559 0 3 3 144244
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Pension Benelils

The Local Governmenl Pension Scheme {Northern Ireland) (ke Scheme) which is a funded defined benefit pension
scheme, which provides refirement benefits for council employees on a "career average revalued eamings” basis
from 1 April 2015. Prior to that date benefits were built up on a "final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, o member builds up refirement pension at the rale of 1/4%th pensionable pay for each year.
Pension benefils in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of
1/60th pensionable pay for each year of membership. There Is no avtomalic lump sum provided in respect of
membership after 31 March 2009. Pension benefils in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at
the rate of 1/80th (pension) and 3/80ths {tax-free lump sum} of pensionable pay for each year of membership up 1o
31 March 2009. Al relirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum, subject io HM Revenue
and Customns {(HMRC} limits. The conversion rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is modified ta reflect the
fact that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career
average basis. Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was accrued al a rale of 17/40th and thereafter ot arate of 1/49h,

The Scheme s funded by contiibulions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior lo 1 April 2009, a
member's confribulion rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration (excep! for those who were enfitled
to conlribute to the Scheme at 5% before | February 2003 and have remained in conlinuaus employment). Tiered

member contiibulion rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1 April 2009.

From 1 Apiil 2015, the member contribution rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities in April each
yedar in accordance with the increase applied to a pension in paymenti, The bands, effective from 1 April 2018, were
as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribulion Rates

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
1 £0-£14,500 5.5%
2 £14,501 - £22,100 5.8%
&) £22,101 - £36,900 6.5%
4 £36.901 - £44,700 6.8%
5 £44,701 - £88,300 8.5%
[ More than £88,300 10.5%

EE]



Employers’ contribution rales are determined by the fund's actuary every three years al the friennial valualion. A
formal kriennial acluarial valuation of the Fund as at 31 March 2016 was caried out in 2016717 and set the employer
confribution rates for the 3 years cormmencing 1 April 2017 as follows:

Table &: Employer Contribution Rates

Year Employer Contribution Rate

1 April 2017 - 31 March 2018 18% + 1.8% deficit contribution

1 April 2018 - 31 March 2019 19% + 1.8% deficit coniribution

1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020 20% + 1.8% deficit coniribution

The Local Governmenlt Pension Scheme Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The
Local Government Persion Scheme {Amendment and Transitional Provisicns} Regulations {Northemn Ireland) 2014
were made on 30 June 2014. Bolh sets of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and iherefore have nol accrued significan! benefits

thus far. However, the in-year pension contribulions made by the Council for ali councillors during 2018/19 was

£159.930.

The value of pension benefits of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the year was as

follows:

Table 7: Pension Benelits of senior siaff in 2018/19 {audiled informaticn)

Ofticers Accrued Pension at Real Increase in CETVat *CETV at |Realincrease in CETV
penslon age as af pension and related 31/319 31/3/18
31/3Ng lump sum at pension £000
£'000 age £'000 £'000

Liom Hannaway 55- 60 {-0.5) -0.0 1,294 1,231 30
Cletk & Chief plus lump sum of 125- | plus lump sum of 0.0 -

Executive 130 {-0.5)
lecwin Curtis 40 - 45 1.0-1.5 933 889 27
Direclor of Strategic plus lump sum of 80 - 85| plus lump sum of 1.1 -

Planning & {-0.5)

Performance (Until

14/01/2019)

Michael Lipseft 35-40 20-25 723 664 36
Director of Aclive plus lump sum of 70 - 75| plus lump sum of 0.5 -
{Health & 1.0

Communities

Marie Ward 15-20 1.5-2.0 165 139 15
Direclor of no lump sum no lump sum

Enterprise,

Regeneration &

Tourism

Dorinnia Carville 15-20 1.5-20 179 152 14
Director of no lump sum ne lump sum

Corporate Services

R U e 15-20 40-4.5 225 161 53
Director of plus lump sum of 10 - 15| plus lump sum of 2.5 -

Regulatory & 30

Technical Services

ntil 30/06/20174

* Please note, new fransfer faclors, effeclive from 7 January 2019, have been used io recalculale the 2017/2018
CETV and for the 2018/2019 CETV. This Is because the real increase in CETV should exclude the impact of any
change in factors. It does mean ihat the CETY now stated for 2017/2018 will be different from that stated at the end

of last year.




The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capilatised value of the pension scheme benefils accrued by a member al @
particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any conlingent spouse’s
pension payable from the scheme. IVis a payment made by a pension scheme or arangement lo secure pension
benefils in another pension scheme or arangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses fo fransfer
the pension benefils they have accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that
the individual has accrued os a consequence of their tolal membership of the pension scheme, not just their service
in a senior capacily to which disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational
Pension schemes (Transfer Values) {Amendment] Regulations and do not take account of any actual or potential
reduction io benefits resulling from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken.

The real increase In the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. I} takes account of the increase in accrued
pension due 1o inflalion, cantributions paid by the empioyee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arangement} and uses commen market valuation factors for the siart and end of the
period.

™~

Chiel Execgti
24 September 2019
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

(a) the Statement of Accounds for the year ended 31st March 2019 on pages 40 to 102 has been prepared in
the form directed by the Department for Communities and under the accouniing policies sel oul on
pages 44 1o 63.

{b}  in my opinion the Siatemeni of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and
cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 3ist
March 2019,

Financial Officer

Date 26/09/2019

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounis were approved by resolufion of the Audit Commiltee on 24 Seplember 2019",

Chalr @m‘gszzt -

Date 26/09/2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWRY, MOURNE AND DOWN
DISTRICT COUNCIL

Opinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council for the year
ended 31 March 2019 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial
statements comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes including
significant accounting policies. These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out within them. | have also audited the information in the Remuneration
Report that is described in that report as having been audited.

In my opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory requirements
and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018-19,
of the financial position of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council as at 31 March
2019 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

» have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government (Accounts and
Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities
directions issued thereunder.

Basis of opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of this certificate. My staff and | are independent of
Newry, Mourne and Down District Council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Financial Reporting Council’s Revised Ethical Standard 2016, and have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other Information

The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the other information included in the Statement of
Accounts. The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of
Accounts other than the financial statements, the parts of the Remuneration Report described in
the report as having been audited, and my audit certificate and report. My opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to
report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion:

* the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Department for Communities directions made under the Local
Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and
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¢ the information given in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31
March 2019 is consistent with the financial statements.

Respaonsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer's
Responsibilities, the Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the income and
expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the
financial year.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with the Local Government
{Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

My objectives are to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I5As (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the Financial Reporting Council’s website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of my certificate.

This report is made solely to the Members of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council in
accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose,
as specified in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Local Government Auditor and Local
Government Bodies.

Matters on which | report by exception
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:
e in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

* does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018-19;

* does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;

* is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my
audit; or

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the Statement of Accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

o |have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or
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* |issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government {Northern
Ireland) Order 2005; or

¢ | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government {Northern ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

e | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local
Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005.

Certificate

I certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Newry, Mourne and Down District Council '
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland} Order 2005 and
the Local Government Code of Audit Practice.

R

Pamela McCreedy

Local Government Auditor
Northern irelond Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

20 September 2019
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Councit
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalemeni shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally occepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation {o cover
expenditure in acceordance with statutory requirements; this may be ditference from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown
in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Moverment in Reserves Statement.

201819 _ s
Exporiiure G1OSS Expendiure  Grassincome  Nel Expendie

—

& £ = £
Chief Execulive 2 2,180,596 (73.112] 2,107,484 2335093 13752} 2,331 341
Corporate Services 2 16,335,647 {340.142) 15,995,505 10.103,569 (347,649} 9.755.920
fg&i’s‘;"“e' L LR R 2 16,101,007 (5053.845)  10.947,162 16612112 15.258,325) 11,353,787
Neighbourhood Services 2 27.637.970 {1054621) 26583349 27.547.616 {1.233,579) 26,314.037
A e 2 20,015,879 (4914,184) 15101495 - 15,028,020 (4.514.083) 10513937

Commmunities

LT LT S R 82.271.099 {11.535,504) 70,735,195 71,426.410 (11,357.388) 60,269,022

Operotfions

Olher Operaling Expenditure/f

N2z {85 6% ; ) AT7)
Income 8 2734 185 674} 226,540 SAT.845 [696.122) [10B.477)
Financing and Investrenl = s :

. 2 : 92,744 137, 009, 7862 AT1,
Income and Expenditure c xeanz [P2.744) 3.137.238 3.009.323 i537.852) 2471461
[Surplus) ar Deficil on
Discontinyed QOperations
Shore of Operating Results of 3

associales and joint ventures

Nel Operating Expenditure 85813315 (11,714,342} 74,098,973 75223378 {12.591.372) 62,632,008

Taxolion and Non-Specilic

Gran! Incame o z (60.988.658)  [60,988.658) | {56,714.293) {56,714.293)

(Surplus)/Deficit on the B5.813.315 (72.703000)  13.110.315 75,223,378 {49.305,645)

Provision of Services

{Surplus)/Deficit on
revoluation of non-current 11 {4.883.073) (12,117,341}
ossels

Impairment losses on non-
cument assels charged fo the 11 [717.078) =
Revaluation Reserve

Surplus/{Delicit) arising an
revaluation of available-for- 27
sale finoncial ossets

Remeasuramenils of the Net
Defined Beneiit Liability 21 {3.830,000) - 52470
|Asseld)

Showe of Other
Comprehensive Expenditure
& Income of associates and
jeint ventures
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Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure [%.432,151) {12,024 851)

Talcl Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 3478 164 [6.107.138)




Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Movement in Reserves Stalement for the year ended 31 March 2019

The Movemenl in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year fo the end on the different reserves heldby the
authorily, analysed into 'usable reserves’ (ie those that con be applied to fund expendilure or reduce local taxation) and other
‘unusable reserves’, The Slatement shows how the movements in year of the Council's reserves are broken down between gains and
losses incurred in accordance with generally accepted occounting proclices and the siatulory adjustment required to return to the
amounts chargeable to council tox for the year. The Nef Increase/Decreqse line shows the statulory General Fund Balance
movements in the year following those odjustments.

Balarce asal 1 Apr 2007  geosoel 1255113 - 10144204 52 d 42,875,296

Movement in reserves during

the year

e i D 15917.113) . : (5.917.713) : {5917.713}
pRrovision of services

Other Camprehensive 12024,851 12,024,851
Income and Expenditure

il Compr=henilve income (5.917.713) : 3 (5.917,713) 12,024,851 6.107,138

ond Expendiiure

Adjustments between
accounling basis & funcding 8535935 - - 8535935 {8.535.935)
under reguloalions

Net increase before fransfers
to Stajutory and Other 2,618,222 . - 2,618,222 3,488,916 4,107,138
Reserves

Transters 1o / lrom Statutory

and Other Reserves 240.000) 240,000 . i E

Increase/ Decreose in year 2,378,222 240,000 - 2,618222 3,488,518 6,107,138

Balance as at 31 March 2018
Movement in reserves during

1.495113 - - 56,200.008 68,982,434

the year

Surplus/ {Deficit) on the .
e o ol sarvices {13,110.315) p ; {13.110,315) . {12.110.315)
Other Comprehensive

Incame and Expenditure rneed P41
Total Comprehensive Income {13,110,315) . 5 (13,110,315} 9,432,151 {3.678,164)

and Expendiiure

Adjustments between
accounting boss & funding 13,812,503 - 13,812,503 {13.760,154) 523109
under regulalions

Nel increase before transfers
to Statutory and Other 702,788 - - T0Z.188 (4.32B.013) {3,425 825)
Reserves

Transfers {o / from Slotulory

¥ Wi
and Olher Reserves {120,000) .2Lr.[.ti1§.

Increase in year 582,188 120,000 - 702,188 (4,328.013) (3,625,825}

Balance as ot 31 March 2019 11,847 501 15,11 = 13,484 &1 51.871.9%5 65,356,409

41



Newry. Mourne and Down District Council
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

Naoba 315t March 2019 31sf March 2DH}__ J

————r-

Fixed Assels 1] 185.280.914 175,008,502
Leng Term Investments &
Investment in Associoles and Joint Ventures i
Lang Term Deblors 15 143,306 550,191
LONG TERM ASSETS 185,424,220 175,558,493
Shorl Term Invesiments & - .
Inventories 14 411,813 381.218
Short Term Debtors 15 7.038,055 6399204
Cashrand Cash Equivatents 22 1,103.575 2,649,235
Assels Held for 5ale Il - 18,000
CURRENT ASSETS 8551443 %447 457
Bank QOverdralft 25 917,976 213,624
Short Term Barrowing ) 17 15758777 5433112
Shart Term Cradilors 18 12,562,809 9.573.212
Provisions 19 70,500 207.251
CURRENT LIABILITIES 29,310,062 15,427,199
Long Term Credilors 18 - .
Provisions 19 3,140,993 4,198.941
Long Texm Bonawing . 17 53,991,999 58,750,776
Cther Long Term Liabililies 21 42,178,000 37,647,000
Donatled Assels Account 22
Copital Granls Receipls in Advonce 23
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 99.310.%92 100,598,737
NET ASSETS 65.356.40% 68,982,434
USABLE RESERVES
Capilal Receipts Reserve 24 .
Capilal Grants Unapplied Account 24 - .
Capilai Fund 24 1,255.113 1,255.113
Renewal and Repairs Fund 26 - .
Cther Balonces and Reserves 26 360,000 240,000
General Fund 24 11.86%.501 11,287,313
13,484,814 12,782 424
UNUSABLE RESERVES
Capital Adjustment Account 27 45810.666 50010074
Financial Instrurnents Adjustment Accounl 27 - -
Revalualion Reserve 27 48,737 027 45,045,424
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 27
Financiat Instruments Revaiuation Reserve 27 - -
Pensians Reserve 27 [42.178.000) {37,647,000)
Capital Receipts Delered Account 27 . -
Accumulaled Absences Accounl 27 [390.926} [357.308})
Landfill Regulations Reserve 27 . .
Provisions Discount Rale Reserve 27 {1.106.772) [852.184)

51,871,995 56,200.008

MNET WORTH 45,356,409 68,982,434



Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Cash Flow Statement ot 31 March 2019

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The statement
shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classitying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
oclivities. The omount of net cash flows arising from operafing activities is a key indicater of the exient fo which the operations of the
Council are funded by way of taxation and grantincome or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represent the extent io which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribule to the Council's future
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in prediciing ¢laims on fulure cash flows by providers of capital
{ie borrowing) to the Council.

—_— ———

Net Deficit on the provision of services 1310315 5917.713

Adjustment for non-cash movements 22 20,945,428 15,795,461

Adijust far items included in the net surplus or deficit on the pravision of

services thal are invesling and financing aclivilies 22 (2.814993) i1.7%0,127)
Net cash llows from operaling aclivities 25 5,040.120 8,087,621
Cash flows from Invesling Aclivilies 23 [12.857.017) 17,122,051}
Net Cash flows from Finoncing Aclivities 5 5,566,889 4,449,529
Netincrease or decrease in cash and cosh equivalents {2.250,008) {4.384,901)
Cash and cash equivalenls at lhe beginning of the reporiing period 2435407 &820.512

Cash and cosh equivalents af the end of the reporting period 185,599 2,435,611
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Stalement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2018719 financial
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2019. The Council is required to prepare
an annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for Communities in
accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit)
Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2018/19, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The accounting convenlion adopied in the Statement of Accounts is principally
historical cost, modified by the revalualion of certain categories of non-current assets and
financial instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the Uniled Kingdom 2018/19 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significani Accounting Pclicies
Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Aclivity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are
made or received. In particular:

- Revenué from contracts with service recipienis, whether for services or the provision of
goods, is recognisd when [or as) the goods or services are transferred 1o the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

- Supplies are recorded as expendifure when they are consumed - where there is a gap
beiween the datie supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet,

- Expenses in relation 1o services received {including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are
made.

- Interest receivable on invesiments and payable on borrowings is accounted for
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Where it is doubiful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a
charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
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ii)

ii)

i)

Acquisitions and Discontinued Cperations

Newry Mourne and Down District Council has not acquired operations (or transferred
operations under machinery of government arangements) during the financial year.

The Council has not discantinued any operations (or fransferred operations under
combinations of public sector bodies) during the financial year.

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

As each of the legacy councils had substantially completed its Single Status, Job Evaluation
and Fay and Grading Reviews, Council has not acquired an opening provision for such
matters. As the staff of the former legacy councils and those transferring in from the
Department of the Environment's Planning Service are protecled by the Transfer of

* Protected Underiakings Act (Norihern Ireland) 2006 {TUPE), Council has not sought to amend

these employees’ terms and conditions of employment. Appropriaie provision will be made
for any financial consequences of employees terms and conditions as and when required.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and depaosits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
investments that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In
the Cosh Flow Staternent, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafis that
are repayable on demand and form an integral port of the Council’s cash management.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has faken place that gives the Council a possible
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Council,

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounis where il is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service
potential,

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liabilily arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise
of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities
also arise in circumslances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an oulflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts.
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wii)

Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be setiled wholly within 12 months of the
yvear-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid
sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current employees, and are
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council.
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlemenis (or any form of leave, eg time off in
lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry
forward into the next financial year. The accrual is made at the wage and salary rates
applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee lakes
the benefit. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitllements are
charged o revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination benefits

Termination benefils are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council 1o
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's
decision 1o accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged
on an accruols basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, fo a
corporate service segment al the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the
ofter of those benefits or when the Council recognises cosis for a restructuring. Where
termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the
pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debils and credits for pension
enhancement fermination benefits and replace them with debts for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensicners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Qfficers’
Pension Fund administered by the Northern Irelond Local Government Officers'
Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefits io members [refirement
lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is aiccounted for as a defined
benefits scheme,

The liabilities of the Northerm Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund attiibutable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projecied unit
method - i.e. an assessment of the fulure payments that will be made in relation to
retirement benefits earned {o date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality
rates, employee turnover rates , etc, and projections of projected earnings for current
employees.
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Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the
Aon Hewitt GBP Select AA Curve over the duration of the Employer's liabilities.

The assels of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ pension fund attributable to
the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoied securities - current bid price
unquoted securities - professional estimate
property - market value

unitised securities - current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

Service cost comprising:

Current Service Cost ~ the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service eamed this year -
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement to the services for
which the employees worked

Past Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years - debited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statements.

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net interest on the net defined benefil liability (asset), - ie net interest expense for the
Council, the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises
from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Invesiment Income and
Expendilure line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement - this is
calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability {asset} at the beginning of the
period - taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability {asset) during
the period as a result of contribution and benefil payments.
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Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expendilure (Remeasurements)

The Return on Plan Assets - excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability {Asset} charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. This includes interest, dividends and other income derived from
the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assels, less
any costs of managing plan assets, and any 1ax payable by the plan iiself other than tox
included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses - changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events
have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the
actuaries have updated their assumptions, charged to the Pensions Reserves as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Participants - the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due 1o
payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution increases pension
due io the employee in the future).

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due 1o payments into the
scheme by the employer,

In relation o retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to
be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according 1o the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movemenrt in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to
and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners
and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that
arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund
of being required 1o account for retirement bengfits on the basis of coash flows rather than as
benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of refirement benefits
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and
accounted for using the same policies that are applied to the Norlhern Ireland Local
Government Officers' pension fund.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service {NICS) Pension Scheme

As aresult of Local Government Reform on 1 April 2015, staff that transferred from Central
Government to the Council retained membership of the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
Pension Scheme. The schemes provides defined benefits fo members {retirement lump sums
and pensions), However, the arrangemenis for the NICS Pension Scheme mean that
liabilities for these benefits cannot ordinarily be identified specifically {o the Council. The
scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no
liability for future payments of benefils is recognised in the Balance Sheet.
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xi)

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

- those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporiing period
- the Sfatement of Accounts is adjusted 1o reflect such events

- those that are indicalive of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and their estimated financial effect.

The Statement of Accounis may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date wilt be recorded on the Statement of Accounts and is usually
the date the Local Government Auditor issues the certificate and opinion. Where material
adjustmenis are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

Exceplional ltems

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an
understanding of the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustiments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error. Changes in accounting esfimates are accounted for prospectively,
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior
period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant informafion about the effect of
transactions, other events and conditions on the Council's financial position or financial
performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively {unless stated
otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as
if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are comrected refrospectively by omending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement for
interest payable are based on the canying amount of the liability, muttiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exacily
discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument fo the amount at
which it was originally recognised.
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For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in
the Balance Sheet is the outsianding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and
inferest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount
payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

However, the bonds issued by the Council in 2018/19 are carried at a lower amortised cost
than the outstanding principal, and interest is charged at a marginally higher effective rate
of interesi than the rate payable to bondholders, as a material amount of costs incurred in
its issue is being financed over the life of the stock.

Where premiums and discounts have been chaorged to the Comprehensive iIncome and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impaci on the General Fund Balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement o the net charge required against the
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Stalement.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow characieristics.
There are three main classes of financial assels measured af:

- amortised cost

- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI}

The Council's business model is to hold investiments to collect contractual cash flows.
Finencial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest {ie where the cash
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).
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xiii)

Financial Assets Measured ot Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits fo the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on
the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued
interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure is the amount
receivable for ihe year in the loan agreement.

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investiment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at a marginally higher effective rate of
interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference
serving o increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions
require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable
for the financial year - the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the
General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Siatement.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debits to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in ihe Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered info a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the
transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-
end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses
are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised qs due to the Council when there is reascnable
assurance that:

- the Council wilt comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
- the grants or contributions will be received.

Amountis recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify thal the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required
to be consumed by the recipient as specified. or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.
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Monies advanced as grants and confributions for which conditions have not been satisfied
are camied in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue granis
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Stotement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expendiiure, it is posied
to the Capital Granis Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the
Caopilal Adjusiment Account. Amounts in the Capital Granis Unapplied Reserve are
transferred to the Capilal Adjusiment Account once they have been applied to fund
capital expenditure.

Intangible Assetls

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance bul are controlled
by the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is
expected thai future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible
asset to the Council.

Internally generated assels are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended to be completed {with adequate resources being
available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benelits or deliver
service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where il
can be measured reliably as attributable 1o the asset and restricled to that incurred during
the development phase (research expenditure is not capitalised).

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an aclive
market. [n practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they
are therefore carried ot amortised cost. The depreciable amount of on intangible asset is
amortised over its useful life 1o the relevani service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. An assel is tested for impoirment whenever there is an indication
that the asset might be impaired - any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Siatement. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating
Expendiiure ling in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expendilure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amorlisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to
have an impaci on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds grealer than £10,000) the Capital
Receipls Reserve,

Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
The cost of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula.
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Long-term contracis are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations
satisfied based on the goods or services transferred 1o the service recipient during the
financial year.

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definition is not met if ihe property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods oris held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being
the price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measureable date. As a non-financial asset, investment
properties are measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are
revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on
revaluation are posied to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to
gains and losses cn disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited fo the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
resultin a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and
losses are not permitied by statutory arangements 1o have an impact on the General Fund
Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted 1o the Capital Adjusiment Account and
the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Alowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Alowances Scheme (Northern
ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorifies are allocated annual target figures for the
maoximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste thal can be sent 1o landfill but there
are no tradable allowances. It is not a 'cap and trade’ scheme since landjill allowances
are nol tradable. For this reason, landfill allowances are nol recognised as assets on the
Balance Sheet.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidenial to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operaling leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land ond buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfiment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.
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The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance
Sheet at the commencementi of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease's inception
(or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is
malched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council
are added to the camying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are
applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

Q. a charge for the acquisition of the inferest in the property,plant or equipment — applied to
wrile down the lease liability, and

b. afinance charge (debited 1o the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Siatement)

Property, Plant aind Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the
lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimaied useful life {where ownership of the asset
does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

The Council is nol required to raise district rates o cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made
from revenue fowards the deemed capital investment in accordance with siatutory
requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and impairment losses are therefore
substituted by a revenue contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting
fransaction with the Copital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement
for the difference between the two.

Operaling Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a siraight-line basis over the life of the
lease, even if ihis does not match the pattern of paymenis {e.g. there is a reni-free period at
the commencement of the lease),



The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment,
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement
of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant
and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. A gain, representing the Council's nef investment in the lease, is credited io the
same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain
or loss on disposal (i.e. netled off against the carrying value of the asset at the fime of
disposal), matched by a lease asset {long term debtor) in the Balance Sheet,

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied 1o write down the
lease debtior together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investiment income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slatement on disposal is
not permitted by statute o increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be
Ireated as a capilal receipl. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the
General Fund Bailance to the Capital Receipis Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settied by the
payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance 1o
the Delerred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the
fuiure rentals are paid, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is
used to write down the lease debior. At this point, the deferred capital receipis are
transferred 1o the Capital Receipis Reserve,

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against District rates, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arangements for capital financing.
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General
Fund Bolance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operaling Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet, Renialincome is credited o the
Other Operaling Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this
does nol maich the paitern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the '
commencement of the lease). (nitial direct cosls incumred in negoliating and amranging the
lease are added {o the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.



xix)

Dispasals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an assel will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its confinuing use, it is reclassified
as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immedictely before reclassification and then
carried at ihe lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously recognised losses in the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assels Held for
Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as assets held for sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount
before they were clossified as held for sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as held for sale,
and their recoverable amount at the dale of the decision not to sell.

Assels that are o be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as assels held for sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the canying amount of the asset in the
Baiance Sheet (whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipis from disposals {if any) are
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as
part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at
the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred 1o the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the
Capital Receipls Reserve. Receipls are appropriated 1o the Reserve from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cosi of non-
current assels is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjusiment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement,

Overheads and Support Services

The cosis of overheads and suppori services are charged io service segments in
accordance with the Council's arangements for accountability and financial performance.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment
is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated wilh the item will flow to the Council and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. Expendilure that maintains but does not add o an
assel’s poiential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential {i.e. repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when il is incurred.

Measurement

Assels are initiolly measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs altributable o bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner inlended by management

. the initial estimaie of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the sile
on whichit is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition does not have commercial substance {ie it wilt not lead to a variation in the
cash flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange,
the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difierence between fair value and
any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of
the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been
made conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets
Account. Where gains are credited o the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment
Accountin the Movement in Reserves Statement,

Assels are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical
cost

- surplus assets - the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and
best use from a market parlicipant's perspeciive

- all other assets ~ fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in
its existing use (existing use value - EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of
an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value,

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from iheir current value at the
yvear-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by
crediis to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might
be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise
from the reversal of a loss previously charged o a service.



The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the
dote of its formal implementalion. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated
into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carnying amount of the assetl, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulaled gains),

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down agoinst the relevant service ling(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
nol been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable amounis over their useful lives. An exceplion is made for
assets without a determinable finile useful life (i.e. freehold land and cerlain Community
Assels) and assels that are not yet available for use (i.e. assels under construction).

Deprecation is calculaled on the following bases:

- dwellings and other buildings - straighi-line allocation over ihe useful life of the property as
estimated by the valuer

- plant, furnitlure and equipment - straight line basis on historic cost using a standard useful
life of 5vyears

- vehicles - siraight line basis on historic cost using a standard useful life of 7 years

- infrastructure - straight line allocation over 25 years

Componentisation

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is
significant in relation to the total cost of the itern, the componenis are deprecialed
separaiely.

Revalugations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciafion charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve fo the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, iechnological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and culture.

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended 1o be preserved in trust for future
generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations. They would be
held by this authority in pursuit of cur overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of
herilage.

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
canstruclive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Forinstance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense {o the appropriale service line in the Comprehensive
income and Expenditure Siatement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the

- obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the

expenditure required to setile the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and
uncertainties.

When payments are eveniually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Estimaled settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year -
where it becomes less than probable ihat a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required {or a lower seitlernent than anficipated is made), the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expecied to be recovered
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council
settles the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sels aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or fo cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund
Balance. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statement. The reserve is then transferred
back into the General Fund Balance so that there is no net charge against District Rotes for
ihe expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounling processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments, refirement benefits and employee benefits and do not represent
usable resources for the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note fo the
accounts.
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XXv)

Xxvi)

Xxvii)

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assels

Services, support services and frading accounts are debited with the following amounts to
record the cost of halding non-current assets during the year:

a. depreciation atlributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revoluation and impairment losses on assetls used by the service where there are no
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which ihe losses can be writien off
c. amortisation of infangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates 1o cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make on annual contribution
from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement
[equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in
accordance wilh statutory guidance)]. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses
and amorlisation are therefore replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance
[minimum revenue provision (MRP]) or the Statutory Repayment of Loans Fund Advances),
by way of an adjusting fransaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capitat under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capifalised under statutory provisions but
that does not resull in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
year. Where the Council has determined io meei the cost of this expenditure from existing
capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Siatement from
the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the
amounts charged, so that there is no impact on the level of District Rates,

Valuve Added Tax

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her
Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.
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XXix)

Fair Value Measuremeni

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equily shareholdings [other financial
instruments as applicable] af fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that
would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transter a liability in an orderly fransaction
between market participants al the measurement date. The fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liakility.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest,

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assef in its highest
and besi use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assef in its
highest ond best use.

The Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumsiances and for

which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of uncbservable inpuis.
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Accounting Siandards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopled

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code)
requires an authority to disclose information relating to the expected impact of an
accounting chonge that will be required by a new standard that has been issued but not
yei adopted. The Code also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied
retrospectively unless fransitional arrangements are specified, this would result in animpact
on disclosures sponning two financial years. )

Accounting changes that are introduced in the 2019/20 code are:

- Amendments o |AS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment property

- Annual Improvementsto IFRS Standards 2014 - 2014 Cycle

- IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

- IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

- Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instrumenls: Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

62



i)

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Pelicies

In applying accounting policies set out from 1a above, the Council has not had o make
any crifical judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about
future events.

Assumplions Made About the Future and Cther Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains esfimated figures that are based on assumptions made
by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking
into account historical experience, current frends and olher relevant factors. However,
because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially
different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2019 for which there is a significant risk
of material adjusiment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assels are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level
of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation 1o individual assets. The current
economic climate makes it uncertain thai the Council will be able to sustain its current

spending on repairs and maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful lives assigned 1o
assefs

Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in refirement ages, moriality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A
firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

63



Newry, Mourne and Down Bistrict Councll
Notes fo the Financial Slatements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201%

2

‘W Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources {government granls, rents, council
tax and business rates) by local autharities in comparison wilh those resources consumed or eamed by authorifies in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices. It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the
council's [direclorates/ services/ departments). Income and expendilure accounted for under generally accepted accounting praclices is
presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income ond Expenditure Stotement,

Chiel Executive

2,105,848 (1,618 2,107,484 2,333,898 2,557 2.331,341
Corporale Services 14,064.977 {1.930,528) 15,995,505 12,207,751 2,451,831 9,755,920
Enleiprise. Regeneralion &
Tourism 7,793,778 {3.153,384} 10,947,142 6,633,254 {4,720.533) 11,353,787
Neighbowhood Services 22.694.813 {3.888,534} 26,583,349 21.807.292 {4.506.745) 26,314,037
Active & Healthy Commmunities 8,791,613 14.310,082) 15,101,495 7951913 {2,562,024) 10,513.937

Net Cost of Services

55,451 04%

{15.284,1485)

70,735,195

50,934,108

(9.334.914)

50.26% 022

Other Income and Expenditure

{54,153,237)

1,471,843

[57.624,880)

(52,552,331)

798,978

{54.351.309)

Surplus or Deficit

Opening General Fund

(702.188)

{13.812.503)

13.110.315

11,287,313

(2.418.223)

(8.535,936)

5917.713

8,909,091

Surplus/ (Deficit) on General
Fund Balanca in Yeor

582,188

2,378,222

Ctosing General Fund

11.849.501

11,287.313



Hewry, Mouvine and Down District Couwncil
Nales to the Financlal Sictements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

b Hote lo the Expenditure and Funding Anotysls

This nole provides a reconcilighion of 1he main adjusiments lo Nat Expenditure Chargeakle 1o the Genaral Fund o anive al 1he amounis in Ihe
Comprehensive Income and Expendiure Stalement. The relevant iransiers between reserves ore explained in the Maovemen! in Raserves

Slatement
Adjusimanis between Funding and Accounting Basls
20181%
Ad c (o] dioo a Ad o ang [} a a c L c ala
Chief Exacutive - - {1.414) - 11.414)
Corporate Services 5.526.217 {7.447.000) [9.745) - [1.930.528)
Enlerpiise. Regenerolion & Tourism [3.124.904) - {28 480) - [3.153.384)
|Heighbowhood Services [3.688.675) - [199.841) - [3.888.535)
Active & Heglthy Commmunilies 16.261,578} - [48.504) - {6.310.082)
te! Cost of Services {7.548.940} {7.447.000) (288.204) - {15,284,146)
Qther Income ond Expendilure from the 2.385.443 (914000 - - 1475642
Expenditure and Funding Analysis
Difference between General Fund suplus or deficit (5.143.297) [8.341.000) - {13.812.503)
and Comprehentive Income and Expenditure
Statameni Surpius or Deficit on the Provision of
Services
Adjurimanis baty 7 Funding ond A ling Basis
201718
Ad o] a dloo o Ad a ang [+ 4 a c G +] clo
Chief Executive - b 2.557 - 2557
Corporate Services 5145814 {2.707.510) 13.527 - 2.451.801
8 Enterprise, Regeneralion & fourism (4.741.507) - 20974 - [4.720.530)
|Heighbowhaed Services [3.489.187) - (B17.558) - [4.505.745}
Active & Hagllhy Commmunities [2.587,.328) - 25.302 - {2.562.024}
Net Cott of Servicey [5.872.204) {2.707.510} {755,598} - (r.314.914)
‘Other income end Expendilure lrom the
Expancilure and Funding Anclysls 1,626,378 [828.000) - - a9
Elifference between General Fund turplus or deficit
ond Comprahenilve incoma and Expenditure
Statemen? Surpius or Deficlt on the Provitien of
Services 14.245.228) 13 535500 {755 ¥R - 18.535.934]
Ad|usttnents lor Capllol Furpores .
Adjuiimenis lo General fund Balances lo mee! the requirements of generally ¢ ted accounting proclices. this column add in depracialion ond impaimmeant

ond revaluation gains and lcssas in the tervices ine and lor

1] Ciher operaling expenditure - adiusts lor capital dispetalt with o fronster of Income on dispasal ol auets ond the omounis wiillen off lor Ihase astals

i} Finencing and investmen? income and expenditure - Ihe iatutory charges lor capital financing is Minimum Revenue Prevition ond other revenua
conirbulions are deduciad lrom finericing and investment income and erpenditure as these ore not chargaable under generally aecepiad occouniing
practices. .

i) Tazation and Non Specific Gront Income and Expendilyre - Copilal gronts are adjuted lor income no! chorgeable under ganaerally ceeepled ecounting
praciices. Revenue gronts are adjusted from those recelvabla in tha year 1o those receivable without conditions or lor which £onditiont were salisfied throughout
the yacor_ The Taxation and Nan Specific Grant Inzome ond Expendilure ina is credited with capital granis receivoble in the yeaor withoul cendilions er lor which

conditions were salighed in the year,

Net chonge lor the Penslons Adjuslments

Net change lor the removal of pension confribuliont and tha addition of IAS 19 Employee Benelils pansion relalec sxpenditure and incoma

For Services: this reapretents the removal of the employer pension conkibutions made by the authetlly ot allowad by tiatute and the replacement with curent
service cosls and pait jervice eash,

Fer finaneing ond investment income ond expendilure: the nat interest on the defined benaft iabiily s charged 1o 1he CIES.
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Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Noles to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

2

[4 Segmental Income and Expenditure

Chief Execufive 61,722 - - - - B17.600 - = -
Corporate Services 268,808 - 13,648 | 2,176,448 261,762 4,598,608 - - 6,421,036
Enlerprise, Regeneration & Td 3,973,593 ~ - - 1,694,099 5,667,049 - - 1,430,805
|Neighbourhood Services 1.022,328 - - - 2,776,388 15,799,217 - - 912,287
Active & Healthy Commmun 2.529.031 - - - 2.570,848 6,721,480 - - 3,690,710
Total income Anglysed on a

segmental basis 7.855,482 - 13,648 | 2,174,448 7.303.117 33,603,954 - - 12,454,938

3

Chief Executive 2,843 - - - - 762,029 - - =
Corporale Services 395,502 - 1,289 | 2,158,786 208,193 4,199,818 - - 5,367,993
Enterprise, Regeneration & Td 4,016,309 - - - 1,414,809 4,747.01% - - 3,348,823
Neighbourhood Services 1,212,247 - - - 2,437,083 15,430,874 - - 1,266,950
Active & Healthy Commmun 2,085,584 - - - 2,229.788 5.880.153 - - 402,513
Total income Analysed on a

segmental basis 7.712,485 - 1,287 | 2,158,786 4.289.873 31.019.893 - - 10,386.27%




Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financlal Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201%9

k¥-]Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

E(pe_nc_ﬁhue

Employee Benefits Expenses
Other Services Expendilure
Support Service Recharges
Deprecialion, Amorlisation, Impairmenl
Interest Paymenils

Loss on the Disposal of Assels

Other Expenditure

Tolal Expendilure

Fees, Charges and alher service Income
interesl and Investment Income

Dislric| rale income

Government granls and Confributions
Support Service Income

Gain on the Disposal of Assetls

Other Income

Tolal Income

{Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services

2018719

T (33.123.718)

(30,751,833}

(37,392,140} [29.983.923)

(11.840.915) {10.890,654)

[3.090,448) {2.986.784)
(226.540) :

{139.534) [22.537)

(85.813.315) (74.435.733)

11.621.598 11,357,388
16,679 5.403
52,957,978 50,471.839
8.030.680 6,242,454

5 108,477

76,045 532,459
72,703,000 48,718,020
{13,110,315) (5,17.713)
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Adjustments between an Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income end Expenditure Statement but required by stalute fo be eaciuded when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income an
determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

Impairmenils {losses 8 reversals) of non-current
assets

Derecognilion [other than disposal} of non-current
assets 1

Revoluation increases/decreases Iaken lo

Surplus/Delicil on the Provision of Services 1] 4.537.798 4,600,781

Depreciation charged in the year on nen-cunent

ossels I 7.303.017 11,840,915 6,287,873 10,890.654
Met Revenue expenditure funded from capitol

under stalule 2 1.871,141 {81,945)
Carnrying amount of non current assels satd B 312,234 587,645

Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, investmenl

properly and intangible ossets 3 {B5 6%4) 126,540 (694,122} (108.477)

Difference belween finance cosls calculated on
an accounting basis and finance cosls calculaled
in accordance wilh stotulory requirements 23

Nel charges macde for retrement benefits in
occordance with |AS 19 20 13.340.000 7.907 000
Direct revenue finoncing of Capilal Expendilure

1223

Capilal Grants and Donoled Assets Receivable
and Applied in yeaqr

Iv (2,729,299} [1.094,005)
Capilal Granis Receivable and Unapplied in year

100
Rates Claw-Back Reserve 4
Adiusiments in relalion to Shorl-lerm compensated
atysences

24 33,618 194,984)
Provisions Discount Role Reserve Adiusiment

24 254,588 852,184

* Amounts not included in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Stalement bul required by
siatute to be included when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the
year
Statutory Provision for Ihe financing of Capital 5
Investment 23 [6.046.000) {5.361,000)
Employers contiibulions poyabie 1o lhe NILGOSC
and retiremenl benefits payable direcl to
pensianers 20 {4,979.000) [4.371.490)

13.812.503

1]



Het lransters [(fo)/irom stalutory and cther
earmarked reserves:

Renewal and Repairs Fund
Inlerest

Other

Caplial Recelpls Reserve
Inlerest

Olher

Other Funds and earmorked reserves
Interest

From Olher funds

Other

Unusable reserves

Copital Adjustment Account

27

27

23

{120.000)

{120,000

[120.000)

{240.000)

{240.000)

{220.000]




Bl C o3l of Services on Continuing Operations
] General power of competence

Frior 1o Local Gavernment Reform on st Apil 2015, expenditure for special purposes was kmiled under Seclion 40 of the Local Govemment
Finance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011, This seclion was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Locol Government Act [Norihern reland) 2014

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Northem Ireland) 2014. the Council has the power fo do anylhing Ihal individuals generally may
do. Councils have lhe power to do this with or withoul charge. The power of competence is not limiled to benelitting the area or its residents
nor is it irmited by exisling powers.

The actual expendilure under Ihe power of competence amounted to £0 during 2018/19 {£0in 2017/18).

[JExternal Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the lollowing costs relating to Ihe annual audil of the Slatemenl of Accounts, cerlification of grant claims and other
services provided by Ihe Councils external auditors.

2018/1¢% 201718

o E _ 2 e S e e = 11 WEET:
Exlerncl Auail Fees 63,000 63.000

MNalional Froud tiligtive Fees 1,10] -
Other Fees 20,000 19,800

84,101 82,800

The Other Fees of £20,000 (2017/18 £19,800) were incurred in respect of the audit an Performance Improvement.

'Sl Cperoling and Finance Leases
Council as Lessor

a The Cauncil has no finence leases os lessor,

3ist March 2018

Not Iuierhunl vecr -
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 459,280 238 759
[Later than 5 years 196850 230,648

862,650 742.4%6

The assets leased by the Council o third parlies are included in Ihe categories of Property, Plant and Equipment wilh carrying values of:

3tst March 2019 3ist March 2018

237

Councll as Lessee
nce Leases (Council as lessee)

herond and Buildings -
Vehicles, Plant, Furnllure and Equipment 17,440 43457 |

The Councilis commilled fo making minimum payments under these leases comprising setflement of the long-term liakiity for the interest in Ihe
property acquired by the Council and finance cosls thol will be payable by lhe aulhority in fulure years while the fability remains outslanding.
The minimum leose paymenls are mode up of the following amounts:

3151 Mcrch 2019

Finence leases liobililies [nel presenr value of minimum lease

paymentis):
Current : g 4,172 23,730
Non- Current o 3

Finance costs poyable i ulure vears
Minimum Lease Payments




The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods:

Minimurn Lease Payments
eh 2019 1151 March 201
; € " :
Nol loter ihan one yeor 4,172 19,558 4172 19.558
Later Ihan one year and not later then five years - 4,172 - 4,172
Later than five years -

4,172 23730 4172 23.730

d[Operating Leases [Councll os fessee]

Finance Lease Liabilities

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

C 0 0 Q
Nol later Ihan | year 159,550 119,333
Laler than 1 year and na later than 5 years 374,524 300,395
Laler than 5 years 1.332.643 1,166,257
1,866,717 1,585,985

The expendilure charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Sialement during the year in ielofion lo these leases was:

201819

201718

Minimum lease poymenls I49,76 B 2]02
Contingent rentals - -
Less: Sublease payments receivable -

alle 0& AR

7



Employee Costs and Member Allowances
] Staff Costs

20181 2017/1_8__ J

T 24157512 | 22.387.848
2093571 1507889
1919879 4,376902

Salkies and ges -
Employers NIC
Employers Superannualion

Tolcl staff caosts 31,170,552 28,672 439

In addilion, agency costs during the year amounted to £1.953,166 (2017718 £2.079,394).
The Council's current contribution rale lo NILGOSC scheme is 20% plus o Deficit Recovery Conliibulion of £355,300 .

Al last actuarial valualion daled 315t March 2016 Ihe funds assets meet 94% of ligkililies at thal dote.

Average Number of Employees - where FIE represents fullime equivalent employees

B 4 verage Number of Employees

Chief Executive 19 18
Caorporale Services 115 106
Enferprise, Regeneration & Tourism 179 176
Neighbiaurhood Services 345 332
Active & Healthy Commmunilies 239 228
Total Number a97 840
(18 (
Full-lime numbers employed 792 764
Pari-lime numbers employed 234 178
otig D 1
e a plo alio * D
£50.001 1o £60,000 16 14
£60,001 1o £70,000 2 2
£70.001 to £80.000 1 1
£80,001 to £90,0000 4 4
£90.001 to £100.000 - -
£100,001 to £110.000 o =
£110.001 to £120.000 1 |
Tolal Number 24 22
[:| Members' Allowances
018 b D 8
Salaries = -
|Basic allowance 598,388 562,431
Mayor's & Depuly Mayor's Allowance N 25.940 25.940
Special Responsibility Allowances 72835 71,407
Dependents’ carers allowance 1.017 1,054
Employer cosls 175172 168.506
Mileoge 75.403 68,127
Conlerences and Courses 5.810 10,748
Trave!l & Subsislence Cosls 22.819 22,848
Miscellaneous Costs 2,166 10,740
Severance Payments - -
ofa a8 0 G
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-] Northern Irefand Civil Service Pension Arrangerments

As asesull of Reform on 1st Apiil 2015, slatt Iransferred from Central Government lo the Council are membets of the Northemn Ireland Civil Service

Pension Scheme.

The Norlhem Ireland Civil Service Pension arangements are unfunded multi-employer deflined benefil schemes bul the Department for
Communities is unable to identily its share of the underlying assets and liobilities, The most up to date actuarial valualion was caried out as at 31
March 2016. This volualion is then reviewed by the Scheme Acluary and updated to reflect curent condilions and rofted forward fo the

reporting dole of ihe DOF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2019,

For 20t8-19, employers” conlributions of £265.097 were payable to the NICS pension arangements al cne of 3 rates in the range 28.7% 1o 34 2% of

persionabie pay, based an salary bands,

-3 Other Cperating Income & Expenditure
-1 5urplus/Deliclt on Nen-Cumrent Assels (excl investment Praperties)

Proceeds from sale (85,694} {694,122}

Carrying amount of non-currenl|

assels sold |excl Investment

Properfies) 312,234 587 645
226,540 {108,477}

)] Other Qperating Income/ Expenditure

2017/18

e — e e e e

2018/1%

Other Operating Expenditure

201819

2017/18

{108.477)

Other Operating {income) / Expenditure

226,540 {108.477)

LA Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

-l Inferest Payable and Similar Charges

Lease/hire pu:chse interest

2018/19

0718

Bank interest

Government Loan Interest 2,176.448 2,158,786

Commercial Loan Interesi - -

Other inferest [please specily) - -
2,176,448 2.158.786

[] Inlerest ond Investment Income

Bank Interest

Employee car loan interest

NIHE Loan inlerest receivable

Invesiment income on Fund Balances

Capilal Fund

Repairs & Renewals Fund

Other Funds

Other Investment income

16,679

5,403
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[4 Pensions interest costs ond expected return on pensions assets

Net interest on Ihe nel defined
benefil liability {osset)

914,000

914,000 828.000

-] Surplus/ (Deficlt) on trading operations

income from Iruding .
[Expenditure = B

[Surplus}/Deficit for the year

[] Income. Expendilure and changes in Fair Value of Investment Properies

2018119 201718

£

Income ncliding rentalincome  (76.085) | (107,943)
Expendiiure 22,419 22,537
Net income from investment

properlies [53.444) {85.426)

Surplus/deficit on sale of
Invesimen! Properties

Proceeds from sale - B
Carrying omounl of investment
properies sold . .
1Surplusifdeficit on sole of
Investment Properties: - -

Changes in Fair Volue of
Invesiment Properies t7.115 [424.496)

53489 [509.922)

Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure 2018/1¢%
wohinfiddiatiolold 0 e T

—

interest Payable and Similar

Charges 2,176,448 - 2,176,448 2,158,786 - 2,158,784
Interest ond Investment Income - {16,679) {16,679 - {5,403} |5.403}
Pensions inlerest cost 214,000 - 914,000 828,000 - 828.000
Surplus/(Delicit) on rading :

operations - - - - - .
Other investmenl income 22419 {76,045) [53.646) 22,537 [107.943) |85.424)
Changes in Fair Value of

Investmenl Properties 117,115 - 117,115 - {424,496) [424.496)

3.229.982 [72,744) 3,137,238 3,009,323 (537.862) 2471,481

10 e e Specific Gront Income
e )

General (5.301,381) | (5.148.449}
Other - B

. {5.301.3B))  (5.148,449) -
Transferred Functions Grant amounling 10 805,545 has been reclassified from service revenue to General Grant in the comparative year o 31
Mareh 2018,




-] Capital Grants and Doncted Assets - Applied

Govermnment & Other Grants -
Conditions mel and appledin
year

Government & Other Granls -
Transier from receipls in advance
Donated Assels - Condifions mef
Donated Assels - Transfer from
donated ossets creditor

{2729.29%}  [1.094.005)

[4 District Rales

_ 2018M1% 2017/18

T, T ———

= Chce et S b

Current year {52.070.535) | {49.712.249)
Finalisalion - previous year {887,443) {759.570)
Transitional Relief

Finalisalion - other years

{52.957,978) {50.471.83%}

Taxalion chd Nen Spe:_lfic Grent Income

el T 2018/19 2017/18
ARSI = TR e e e 3 ST e ey f

(52.957.978) |  {50.471.839)
{5.301.381) {5.148,449)
{2.729.299) {1.094,005)

|Revenue Grants
|Cupi1aF Grants and Conbibutions

{40.988,458) (56,714.293)

FL ]
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Newry. Mourne and Down Distilct Council
Noles lo the Financlal Siatements
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

FOR THE

1

Inveslment Properies 31032019 31/03/2018
Rental ncomerom Ineslmenl ciivilies

Direcl Operaling expenses arising from invesiment propertias {22.41%9) [22.537)
Net goin/{loss) 53,646 A5.426

Investmen! Properties 2018/19

2017/18

Balance al start ol Ihe year 3155814 2730.187
Additions 162,31 1,133
Disposals - -
Nel gains/losses from lair value adjustmenis {(117.015) 424,494
Transters ta/ from invenlories -

Transters to/ from properly. plant and equipment {991,000) -
Other changes - -
Batance at end of the year 2.210.002 3,155816

The Councils colleclion ol Herilage assels is reporied in the Balance Sheet al insurance valuation or Hisleric cost. These assels
include museum artefacts, works ol art and civic items. Ross' monument is also included which is silualed belween Rosirevor and
Warenpaint.

Invesiment Propertles : 31/03/201%

Artelacts 525.132
Histauical Furnilure 81,935
Civic llems 65,600
Other (Ross' Menumenil) 413,911
Other 455.854
TOlAL 1.542.434

B0



g Asseh Held lor Sale

Assels Held tor Sale have been recorded in Note 11,

h Long-Term Asiets - Leasad Assels

gu: or Valvation

Al 1 Apsil 2018 2,618,982 T49. 248 3,388,230
Addilions - = -
isposals - - -

Al 21 March 2019 2,618,982 749,248 3.388,230
Depreclation

Al 1 Apdl 2018 2,618,982 685 442 3.304,424
Disposais ¥ 1 =
|Provided 1or year - = -
Al 31 March 201% 2,818,982 485 442 3,304,424
Net Book Velve - 83804 83,804 |

Cost or Voluation -

At 1 April 3017 2,518,982 749,248 3,388,230 |
Additions - . =
Disposals - - -
At 31 March 2018 2,818,982 749,248 3,388,230
Depreciation -

At 1 Apiil 2007 2,618.982 877714 3,296,478
|Disposals - - =34
Provided for year - 7,725 7.728 |
Al 31 March 2018 2,618,982 585,442 3,304,424
Nel Book Value - B83.804 83.804




12

Capilal Expendiure and Capial Financing

The lotal amount of copital expendilure incured in the year is shown in the table below [including the vaiue of assets acquired
under finance leases and PFl conhracts), together wilh the resources that have been used to linance if. Where capilal
expenditure is fo be finonced in future years by charges to revenue as: assats are used by the Council. the expendiiure results in an
increase in the Capilal Financing Requiremeni (CF). a measure of the capilal expenditure incured historically by the Council thal
is yel jo be linanced. The CFRis analysed in the second part ol this note.

Caplicl Expendilure 2018/1¢ 2017/18
£ £

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 79,970,002 70,141,442
CapHal Investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 11 16,882,089 17,343,653
Invesiment Propertias 162.301 1.133
Inlangible Assels 233,423 -
|Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capilal under 1,871,141 {B1.945)
Invesiments - -
Other {524.742} |283.174)
|Sovices of Finance

Capilal Receipls (835,694} 1696.122)
Gavernmenl Gronts and Other Contiibutions 10 [2.729.299] [1,094,005)
Transfers from Earmarked Reserves - -
Sums set cside from Revenve:

|Dwect Revenue Conhibulions . -
Minimum Ravenue Provision [6.0456.000] 15.351.,000)

Clesing Capltol Financing Requliement 8%,733221 79,970,002

Future Capital Commiimen!s

The Council has an engaing programme ol capital works and the estimatad cost of the schemes is as follows:

Gross Cost Grant Aid Net Cost

L £ 3

Schemes underway 52,030,441 - SE.L‘I‘_'_E} [T
Cther Commitmenls | | 23,982,304 | - 23.982.308
Total 76,012,747 - 74.012,747

Inventories 2018/19
£

Central Stores pril] 206.863
CQlher | 190,202 | 174,355
Tolal 411,813 381,278

LH



[] Long Term Cebtors 2018/19

L]

17
a

b

Government Deporiments - -
Other Councils - -
Public corporations and trading funds - B
Bodies external to general governmenl - -
Employes cor loans 28.5635 37.521
Revenue Grants = B
Capitol Gronts 5 -
Interest Receivable - -
Capital Deblors 5 -
Loans and advances 50.741 54,341
Finance lease deblors 64,000 458,32%
Trade debtors = B
NIHE Loans - -
Other B B
Impairment of loans and receivables - S
Conhact Receivables = 5
Tolol Long-Term Deblars 142,304 550191

Shert Term Deblors 2018/1% 2017/18

£

Govemnmean! Deparlments 1,290,278 1,124,442
Qther Councils 17.074 146.505
i_l’ublic corporalions and trading funds - -
[Bedies exlemal to general government - -
MNIHE loans - -
!-Emproyee cor loans 22,349 31,205
|rRevenue Grants 2,084,997 1,610.486
Capital Granls 1.535.486 427,838
Inferast Receivable - 6.438
Coapilal Debtors - 409,500
value Added Tox 1.217,224 1,289,215
’I-’repcwmenls 240,981 254,668
Finance lease deblors - =
Other 286.649 192.341
Trade receivables 542,420 818.182
Imparmenil loss - Trode receivables [21%.403] {311,814)
Confracl Receivables - -
Total Shott-Term Debtors 7.038.055 4,399,204

Tetal Deblors 7.181,361 4,947,395

Inveslmenls

The Council has no investmenils *

Borrowings
Shorl Term Barrowing 2018119
£

Loans re-payable wilkin one year 15,754,605 5,409,381
Finance Lease Principal | ] 4172 | 23,731
Tolal Short Term Bomrawing 15,758,777 5433112

ong Barro g 018/1% 0 3
Belween | ond 2 yeors 4277171 4,758,777
Between 2 and 5 years 11.042.620 11,857,994
Botween 5 and 10 years 15919107 16.243.806
in more than 10 years 22,733.101 25.870.19%
Governmenl Logns Fund 53,991,999 58,750,776
Telal Bortowing 8§9.750,778 44,183,888

LE}
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w

Credilers
-] Short Term Cieditors 2018/1%
£

Government Departmenls 1,139,065 758,334
Other Councils 18F.294 B5.711
Public corporations and trading funds 10,272 3.103
Bodies external fo general government - -
Rates clawback - -
VAT c -
Remuneralion due lo employees 1,568,079 1,456,551
Accumuialed Asences 390.926 357.308
Loan Inlerest Payable - -
Capilal Creditors 4,455,205 2.319.4463
IReceipls in advance 591,947 503.936
Trade creditors 3.987.535 3.4B5.212
Olher 238,484 203,594
Confract Payables - -

Total Short Tetm Creditors 12 542 80% 9573212

[4Payment of lnvolces

The council has o larget, where no olher lerms ore agreed. of paying supplier invoices within 30 calendar days. During tha year
the Council paid 23,142 invoices tofalling £62.4418.798,

The number ol dispuled involees wera 111,

The Council paid

20.904 (70%) inveoices with 30 calendar days largel:
2,225{10%} inveoices within 10 working days targel: and
2,238 Involces oulside ol the 30 day larget

The average number ol days taken to pay suppliers during lhe year was 20 doys.

Provitions
Increacse in Unused Intetest cost
Bolance as at 1 provisicn during Ulllised during amaunts  andfor diseount Belance as at 31
Apill 2018 year year teversed rate changes Mcich 2019
£ £ £ B E
Landifill Closure 4.198.941 - {442.53%) {591.493} {23.216) 3,140,992
Statf Costs 207.251 - [83.610) [53.141) - 70,500
Olher - o = N _ N
Total 4.404,192 - (526,149) (844.434) [23.914) 3211.493
Current Provisions | 207.251 | | 183.510) {53141} - 70.500
Long Term Provisions | 4.198.941 | | {442 53%) {591.493) {23.914) 3,140,993
Totak 4,404,192 - [526.149) {444.434) {23.916) 3.211.493

Comparative Yeaor

Increase in Unused Interest cost Restated

Balance as at 1 provision during Utillsed during amounts cndfor discoun! Balance as at 31

Provisions April 2017 year year reversed rale changes March 2018
£ £ £ £

Landiill Closure 3.757.476 [493.849] %35.314 4,198,941
Slaff Cosls 143,748 63,503 - - - 207,251
Total 3.901,224 4$3.503 {493.84%} - 235.314 4406192
Currerit Pravisions | 143,748 63.503 - - 207,251
Long Term Provisions  { 3,757,476 . [493,849) . 935,314 4,198,741
Tolal 3.901.224 63.503 {493.84%) - 935.314 4,406,192
Londfill Closure

The expecled cosl of landfill closure and alfercare costs of £3,140.993 is based on the percentage ulilisation ol the land!il sites ol
both Drumanakelly ond Aughnagun and has been recognised as a provision. Aughnagun Landlill Site was closed at 31st March
20§35, Drumanakelly Landfil Sile ceased fo take landfit on 30th April 2014. It has to be stated that now the sites have closed it will
lake a peiiod of time belore there will be a reliable trend lor closure and attercare costs and gas generalion income.

Stali Costa
The provision is lo cover estimated monies due to employees lor overtime due in respect of holiday pay.

a



Categotles of Financlal Instruments

The following calegories of financia! insfrumenl are conied in the Balance Sheel

Financlal Assels as at 31 March 2019
Non.Current Current
Investments & Investments &

Cash and Cash Cash and Cash
Equlvalents Deblors Equivolen!s Delbars

Fak Value through
prolit or loss . -
Amortised cosl 143,304 1,103,573 Va0.457

Fair Valve {hrough

olher comprehensive
income - designoled
equily insirumenls - E

Fair Value Ihrough |
other compeehensive | |
ncoma - ather - ! -

2147234

Tolal Financial Assels - 143,304 1.103.573 920,457
Non-Financial Assels - 6,117,595

2,167,334
8,117,595

Total - 143,306 1.103.573 7.038.052

8,284,931

Debtors af amontised cost as at 31 Match 2019

Non-Cunent Current

[ £
Tiade Receivables - 562,420
Trade Recewvables - Impairment Loss - [219,403)
Governmenl Departmenis . 268,444
E:n Loans 50741 3,600
Employee Car Loans 28,565 22,349
Gas Incoma Debtor 64,000 257,000
Other - 26047
Tota! 143,304 920.457

|-+



Fair Valuve through
prolit or loss

Amortised cost

Fair Value through
other comprehensive
inceme - designaled
equity inshuments

Fair Value through
other comprehensive
income - other

Financial Assels as at 31 March 2018

MNon-Current

tnvestments &
Cosh and Cash
Eguivalents

Beblors

2

Cunent

Investments &
Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Ocblos

LG 235

4814025

Tolel Financinl Assels
Non-Financial Assets

2,649,235

1.614.600
4,784 607

Total

2

.649.235

6,399,207

4.814.024
4,784,507

?.598 433

Deblors ot amodised cost s at 31 March 2018

Non-Current Current

£ £
Trade Receivables B18.185
Trade Receivables - Impairmenl Loss {311.416)
Government Depariments - 843,547
Solt Loans 54341 3.400
Employee Car Loans 37,521 31.205
Gas Incomea Deblor 458 329 F17.759
Olher - 111,920
Tolal 550,191 1,814,600

Financtal Liabiitles as al 31 March 201%
Non-Current

Fair Value through

Botrowings
£

Creditors

£

Borrowings

Curren)
Creditors
£ £

protil or loss

Amorised cosl 53.991.9%9 15,758,777 9.312.213 79,042 989
Tolal financial

llabiltles - s - $.312.213 231212
Non-financial liabililies ) ; . 1,250 596 3,250,578
Tatal 539915999 | 5 15758777 | 12,562,809 82.313.565 |

Financial Uabllitles as at 31 March 2018
Non-Cusrent

Fair value through
profit or loss

Borrowings
£

Cicditers

3

Bo

Current
rowlngs Creditcrs
£ £

Amortised cost B,750.776 5433011 6,655.019 70,838,906
Tolal financlal ]

liabliites 58,750,776 - 543311 4,655.01% 70,838,905
‘N_on-llncnmul liahilities . ~ R 2918193 2908 'E:L
Tolal 58,750,776 - 5433111 9,573,212 73,757,09%

Material solt loans made by the Councll

The Council has one historie salt loan but does not consider this to be material



Employee Car Leans

The Council makes loans for car purchases 1o 11 employees. including 2 diseciors, in the aulhority who are In posls that require
them to drive regularly on the Council's business.

Interest is charged on the loans at Bank of England Base Rale plus 1.5%.

Balance al siarl of
year:
Opening balonce G724 B Ta¥

Neminal value of new
loans granted in the
year 17, 500 28400

Fair value adjusiment
on initial recognition

Fair value of new 86.276 116169 |
Loans repaid 35311} [47.443) |
Impairment losses B -
Increase in

discounled ameount .
Other changes . .
Closing balance 4l

end of year 50915 68726
Nominal vatue at end
of year 50915 48,724

Valuation assumplions

These Joans have been valued at nomingl value as they are nol considered malerial to the Council,

Income, Expense, Galns and Losses

2018/19
Surplus or Deflelt on the Provision Other Comprehensive lncome and
of Services Expendiluie

Interest revenue

Financial assels

measured al 13.648
amorised cosl

TolalInteresi revenue | 13,648 | =

Interest expense | 2,174,448 | . I

2017/18
Surplus or Deficlt on the Provislon Other Comprehensive Income and
of Services Expenditure

Interest revenue

Financial assels

measuvred al 5.403

amorlised cost

Tola! Inleres! revenue | 5400 | . |
Inlerest expense | 2.158.78 | -

Falr Values of Financial Assels end Financlal Lieblities

Fakr Values of Financlal Assets and Financial Liabilitles that are nol Measured ot Falr Value (but lor which Fali Value Dlsclosures are
Required).

All the tinancial liabilities and lirancial assets held by the autherity are classified as loans and receivables and long-term deblars
and credilors and are canied in the 8alance Sheet ot amertised cost. The fair values catculaled are as follows:



Carrying

Financial Liabllities amaunt

£

Financial liabililies
hetd at amortised
cost {Loans)

st March 2019
Fair velue Canylng amount

315t March 2018
Fair value

47730774 B1,471.145 44,183,887 75,199 440
Long-lerm creditors - - . E
PFl and finonce lease - - - E
Tolal 69,750.774 81,471,165 64,183,887 75.199.440

The lair valve of borowings is higher than The canying amount because the mojority of the Council's porllofio of loans are held
wilh the PWLB and cany a prematute redemplion penally If the loans are repoid eaily.

Other financia! assels and liabilities including trade receivables, rade payables and cash and cash equivalents are cartied al
cost os thisis a far approximalion of their value.

fair Values ol Financial Assets and Financial Licblfies tho! are not Measured af Fakr Value

Quaoled prices
in uctive
matkets for
Identical assels
[Level 1}
Recuning fair value
measuiements using:
Financlal fabiiities
Financial liabililies
held at amortised

et

Loans/bomowings

Olher significant
obseivable
inputs {Level 2}

B1.471,165

Significant
unchservable
Inputs {Level 3)

313t March 2019

81,471,185

Total =

B1.471.155

81,471,155

Financlol assels
Financial assels held
al amertised cost

Salt loans lo third
parlies

Other financial assels

105,256

105,258

Tolal -

105,258

105,254

Quoted prlices
in aclive
markets for
Idenlical assets
{Llevel 1]

Recuning fair value
measuiements using:
Financial Habilities
Finoncial liabililies
hefd at amortised
cost

Loans/borrowings

Other signlficant
observable
Inputs {Level 2}

75,199,440

Significant
unobservable
Inpuls {Level 3)

31st Mareh 2018

75,199,440

Tolal -

75,199,440

75,199,440

Financlal assets
financial assets held
at amerlised cost

Soft loans to thrd
parties .

Qther linancial assets

126.667

126.667

Tolol .

126,867

125,667 |

The fair value fer linancial liabilities and financial assels that are not measured at lai value included in levels 2 and 3 in the lable
above have been arived al using a discounted cash flaw analysis with the most significant inputs being the discount rate.

The fak value lor linancial liabilities and linancial assets that are nol measurad al fair value ¢an be assessed by calculating the
present value of the cosh llows Ihal will lake place over the remaining term of Ihe instuments.

Other linancial assets including frode receivables and cash and cash equivatents are canled af cost as this s a fair approxmation

of their vatue.



Nature and Extent of Risks Arltlng from Financial Instruments

The Council's activities expose I 1o a varlely of linancial risks:

Credit Risk

Credil risks arises from deposits with banks and linancial inslitulions as well as credil exposures to ihe Council's customers.
Customers are assessed laking into account their financial position, past experience and other faciors, with individual credil limits
being set in accordence with paramasters set by the Council. The provision for bad and doubllul debts rellects the Counci's
assessment of the risk ol non-payment by Irade debtors and as such. there is no further additional estimated exposure to default
and inability 1o callect.

Lass than ihree months 333.20%
three lo six months 50,435
six manlhs fo one year 73.549
Mcore than one year 269.433
Tolal 726,626

The above ligwes include frade debls relating to car parking, government deparlments and olher councils disclosed separalely
in Nole 15,

Lo Allowance by Asiel Class - Assels Held al Amorised Cost

Lifetime expected credit losses - not credit Impaired £

Opening Balonce as af | Aprii 2018 311,418
Amaunts wiitten ofl 15.555)
Other changes 186.641)
Closing Balance as al 31 Maich 2019 219.400

There is no historical experience of detault in relation lo deposils with banks and olher financialinstitutions. The Council manages
credit risk by ensuring thal invesiments are only placed wilh organisalions of high credil quality as sel out in the Treasury
Management Shkrategy.

Liquidity Risk

The Council managaes its iquidity posilion through Ihe risk management processes sel out in ils annual Treasury Management
Stralegy and Prudential Indicatars, as well as Ihrough the active management of the cash flow position. This seeks lo ensure thal
cash s available when il is needed

As lhe Council has ready occess lo borowing ltem the Public Werks Loans Boord, lhera is ne significant risk that it will be unable to
raise linance to meet its commitmenls under Financial Instruments. The maturily analysis of linancial fabilities is included at Note
17 and other payables are due for payment wilthin one year.

Market Risk: Interest Rales
The Council is exposed ta risk in terms of tls exposura lo interesl tale movements on ils borowings and invesimanis, The Councilis
in receipl of loans from the Deportment ol finance howaver these leans are al fixed concessionary inlerest rates thal ditler from

the prevailing market rates.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has na linancial assels or liabilities denominaled in foreign curencies ether than a bank account denominaled in
Ewre. This aczount is used salely 1o Iacililate the CANN Project [Collaberative Aclion lor the Nalura Netweork), The Council does
nal consider this a material exposure 1o loss arising from meovements in exchange rates



3 I Retirement Benefils
[:] Farticlpation in the Nerthern Iretand Local Governtment Ollcers’ Penslon Fund.

As part of lhe lerms and condilions of employmenl ol ils officers and other employees, the Council offers ratiement benelits
Although these benelits will not aclually be poyable until employees refire, the Council hos @ commilment to make the
paymenls that need lo be disclosed af Ihe lime that employees earn their future enlitlement.

The Council participales in the Northem Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund administered by the Northern reland
Local Government Olficers’ Superannuolion Committee. This is a lunded scheme, meaning thal the Council and employees pay
conhibulions inte a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension's liabilities wilh invesiment assels

b Transaclions relaling to retbement beneilts - Comprehensive Income and Expendiure Stalement Charges;

The Council recagnises Ihe cost of retirement benelits in the Cost ol Services on Continuing Operalions when they are earned by
empleyees, rather than when the benelils are eventually paid as pensions,

However, the charge the Council is required fo make against district rales is based on the cash payable in the year. and tha real
cost of reliremenl beneiils is reversed out in the adjustmenls between accounling basis & lunding basis under regulations line, in
the Movement on Raserves Stalement

The following fransaclions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slalement and the adjuslments
between accounling basis & funding basis under regulations line, In lhe Movement on Reserves Slatement during the year;

Nole 2018/19 2017718
£ £

Nel cost of services:
Cunent service cost 8.022,000 7,027,000
Pasl service cost/{gain) 4,404,000 52.000
Gains and losses on seltlements or curlailments - -
Nal operaling expenditura:
Nel Interes| on net defined banelil Liability {asset) 214,000 828.000
Tolal Post-employment Benefils charged o the Surplus or Delicit on the
Provision of Services 13,340,000 7.907 000
Movemenl in Reserves Statement:
Reversal of nel charges made lorietiement benelits in accordance wilh
1AS 19 and the Cade {13,340,000) [7.907,000}
Actual amount charged against the general fund batance for pensions in
the year:
Employers’ contiibutions payabls to scheme 4.979,000 4,371,490




The service cost figures include an allowance for adminisiration expenses of £25k (2017/18 £86k)

d Qg d QO O B
0 and D d v 018 0 8

Liability gains/flosses} due to change in assumptions {11,69%.000) {3,418.341)
IIJubiIiiy gains/(iosses) due to due to demographic changes 8.503.000 s
|Llubili1v experence gains/(lossas) arising in the year {189,600} 1621.000)

Actuariol gains/licsses) on plan assels 7.215.000 3946871

Other - -

olal ga » ag d O ; 0 P O and o d 830.000 9 490

Assets ond llabilitles [n relatlon to refirement benefits

Reconclliction of present vatue of the seheme liabilifles: 2018117 2017/18
£ £

Ealonce as at 1 April 194.285.000 183.143.000
Cunent service cosl 8.022,000 7.027.000
Interes! cost 5,068,000 4728000
Contributions by members 1.435.000 1.379.000
Remeasuremen! {gains) and losses:
Actuarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 11,699,000 3.418.381
Actuanal gains/losses arising ram demographic changes {8.50:3.000) -
Aciuarial gains/lcsses arising on liabililies from expetience 189.000 621,000
Other [if applicatla) - -
Past service costs/(gains) 4,404,000 52,000
Losses/(gains) on curtailments - N
Liabillilies extinguithed on settlements - =
Estimated unlunded benelils paid 181,000] [85,361)
Estimated benefits paid 14,127,000} {3.997.000]
Balarce as at 31 March 214,391,000 195,285,000
o ctlon of prese clue o o 0 018/19 0 5
Balance as al 1 April 158.638.000 149,124,000
[interest incame 4,154,000 3.900.000
Contributions by members 1,435,000 1,379,000
Contribulions by employer 4,898.000 4,285,129
Contiibutions in respect ol unlunded benelils 81.000 86341
|Remeaswement gain/{loss) 7,215,000 3,944 871
Assels dislribuled on satflements - -
Unlunded benaelils paid {81.000) (86.341
|Benelits paid 14,127,000} {3.997.000!
Baolance as ot 31 March 172,213.000 158.638.000

The expected return on scheme assels is determined by considering Ihe expecled relurns available on the assels underlying the
current invesimenl policy. Expecled yields on fixed interast invesimenis ore based on gross redemplion yisids as al the Balance
Sheet date. Expecled raturns on equity investmeanls reflect long-term real rales ol refun experienced in the respective morkels,

The actual relun on schemea assets in the year was a goin of £15.6m (2017/18 gain of £9.5mj.

Equily investiments 102,466,735 118.185.310
Bonds r 40,470,055 18,241,370
Property 19,287,855 16.656.990
Cash 4,649,751 4,124,588
Other 5,338,603 1.427.742

172.213,000 158,638,000

The above osse! values are at bid value as required by IAS 19,
The bid valves were provided by NILGOST, the adminislering authority.

Tha amounts included in the lair value ol plan assets for property occupied by the Council wes ENil



The Council's share of the Nel Pension Uabillty (included in the Balance Sheel):;

[:] Scheme History
Anadlysls of scheme assels and liabllities

2018/1¢
£

018/1% 0 B

Fair Value of Employer Assets 172,213.000 158.438.000 |
Present value of lunded defined benefit obligation 1214,391,000) {194.285.000)
Pension assal/{liability) of Funded Scheme {42,178.000) {37.647.000)
Present Value ol unfunded delined benelit obligalion - -
Other movement in the liability {assel) (il opplicable) - -
Nel azset/{liabilly) arsing from the defined benefit obligotion [42.178,000} {37.647.000)
Amaounl in the Balance sheel:

|tiabifities 214,391,000 {194.285.000}
Assels 172,213,000 158.438.000
Nel Asself{Liabllity) (42,178.000) (37.647.000)

2017/18
£

\Fair Volue of Assets in pension scheme 172.213.000 158,638,000
\Present Value of Delined Benelil Obligalion 1214,391,000) [194.285,000)
Surplus/(deficl} in the Scheme {42,178,000) {37.447.000)
» 0g ¢d O o] o a
and ] d 0 7 O 8
Actuatial gains/{losses) {3,385.000) XA
Expecied Relurn on Plan Assols [7.215.000) [3.946.871)
Increase/{decrease] in imrecoverable surplus lrom membership fall and
other factors 3.385.000 4.03%.381
Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure {3.830,000] 92.4%0
Cumulative acluarial gains and losses {825,483 A.004.517
History of experience gaing and losses:
Experience gains and [losses) on assels {7.215.000) [1.946.871)
Experience gains and {losses) on liabilifies 11.692.000 3,418.341

The liabilities show the undetlying commitmenis that Ihe authority has In the lang run to pay retremenl benelits. The total liability

of £210.024.000 has a substantial impact on Ihe nel worlh of the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheel, resulling in a net

liability of £37,811,000

Howaver, slatulery cmangements for funding the delicit mean that the financial pesilion of the Council remains heatlhy. The

delicil on the Northern Ireland Locat Government Ollicers’ Pension Fund will be made good by increased conlribulions over the

remaining weiking life ol employees, assessed by Ihe scheme acluary

Analysis of projected amount to be charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slalement for the year fe 31 March

2019

0 019 0
Projecled current cost 8.022.000 229%
Netl inlerest on ihe nel delined benelit liability {asset) B81,000 2.5%
Past service cost 37.000 0.1%
Gains and losses on selllamenls or curlailimenls - 00%

N
o
in
3t

8.%40.000

The fctal contibutions expecied to he mode lo the Norlhern reland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund by the council in

the year lo 31 March 2020 s £5,050.000.

Histary of experience goins and toises

The actuarial gains/losses idenlified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2018/19 can be analysed inta Ihe (ollowing
calegories, measured as a percentage of assels or liabilities at 31 March 2019.

200718

Expetience [gains and [losses] on Assels
|Expesience gains and (losses] on Liabilities | ] -5.46% | -1.74% ]

a2



b Basls for estimoting cssets and labllilies

Liabiifies have been assessed on an actuarial basis wsing the projected unit melhod. an estimate of the pensions tha! will be
payable in The future years dependent on assumpiions about mortalily rates, salary levels, ete. The Council's Fund liabililies have
been assessed by Aon Hewilt Limited, an independent lirm ol actuaries, estimates lor the Council Fund being based on data

pertaining to the lalest full valuation of the schema as at 31 March 2019

Penslon scheme assumplons: 2018/1% 2017/18
Equity investmenls 59.5% 71.4%
Bonds 231.5% 12.4%
Froperty 11.2% 10.0%
Cash 2.7% 4.5%
Other 31% 1.7%
Mortality assumptions:

Longevily at 65 cument pensioners: Years Years

rMan 22.6 23.3
Women 243 255
Longevily ab 85 for future pensioners:

Men 249 259
Women 267 28.2
Inllation/Pension Increase Rala 2.20% 2.10%
[Salary increase Rate 3.70% 3.40%
Expacied Relurn on Assels 0.00% 0.00%
Discounl Rate 2.40% 2.60%
Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.20% 2.10%
Take-up of oplion lo conver annual pension Into reliiement lump sum:

Service lo April 2009 Oji. 0%
Setvica post April 2009 0% 0%

Penslon Assumptions Sensitivity Analysis

The pension ligures disclosed in these linancial stalements are sensitive lo The assumplions used.

The approximate impacl of changing key assumplions on Ihe present value of Ihe funded defined benelit obligalion as at 31

Morch 2019 is sef out below,

In each case, only tha assumplion neled below i altered: all other assumptions remain the same and are summarised in the

discloiure abave,

Funded Pension Scheme Bepefily

Discount Rate Assvmption

Adjusiment 1o discount rale +0.1%p.0. 0.1%p.a.
|Present value ol the lolal obligalion 204.811.000 212824000
% change in the presen! value ol the iolal obigation -1 90% 1.90%
Projected service cost 8.274.000 8,734,000
Approximale % change in projected service cost -2 70% 270%
|Rate of General inciease in Salarles

Adjustment to salary increase rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.

Present value of the iotal obligatien 209.963.000_ 207,606,000
% change in the present value of the lotal obligalion 0.40% -0.60%
Projecled setvice cosl 8.502,000 8.502.000 |
Approximate % change in piojecled service cost 0.00% 0.00%
Rale of Increase to Penslons in Payment and Defened Pension A [

Adjustmenl to pension increasa rcle +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.

Presenl value of the tolal obiigation 211,627,000 205.972.000
% change in the present value of the lolal obligalion 1.40% -1.30%
Froecled service cosl 8.736.000 8.274,000
Approximate % change in projected service cost 270% -2.70%
Fos! Relirement Morality Assumplion

Adjusiment to mortalily age raling assumption® =1 Yeot +1 Year

Present value of the lolal cbligalion 215.433,000 202,182,000
% change in the present vaive of the folal obligation 3 20% -3.20%
Projected service cost B8.822.000 8.185,000
Approximale % change in projected service cost 3.80% -370%

* Arating of +1 year means that members are assumed o fofiow the moertoly patiem ol the base table obove for an individual

that is | year clder then that.



[l Majer categoties of plaon assels as pescentage of fotal plon assels

The Northern Ireland Local Gavernment Officers’ Pension Fund's assels consist of the following cotegories, by proportion of Ihe
total assets held:

Equily invesimenis 59.50% 71.40%

Govemment Bonds 16.50% 5.20%
Corporale Bonds 7.00% 7.20%
Property 11.20% 10.00%
Cash 2.70% 4.50%
Other 3.10% 1.70%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

Allowance for the McCloud Judgement ond GMP Indexation / Equalisalion

Relirement Benelils Note 21 includes an estimated allowance for addilional liabililies that are naw probable arising lom the
McCloud Judgement and GNP Indexalian and Equalisalion cases oullined below.
The addilional liability is shown as a Past Service Cosl over Iha accounling period based on an effective date of 31 March 201%.

McClovd Judgement

In December 2018 the Couwrt o Appeol ruled in the "McCloud/Sargeanl’ judgement that the transitional profection arrangements
put in place when the Frefighlers’ and Judges' pension schemes were relormed were age discriminalory. The Governmenl
applied fo the Supreme Courl for permission lo appeal this judgement however the Supreme Court rejected the requesl on
27/069. The next slage is for the case 1o be refered to the Employmenl Tribunal 1o agrea the remedy. following approptiate
consullation. Whila the judgemeanl was not in relalion to members will
Local Governmenl Pension Scheme [NI) benefils il would be reasonable 1o assume that the Gaveinment will now seek remedy for
all public sector schvemes, including Local Government Pension Scheme [Ni).

The additional liability was calzulated 1o be 3.2% of the Council's active liabililias using a salary increase assumption of 1.5%
above CPiinflation.

GMP Indexotion and Equalisath

Guaranleed Minimum Pension (GMP] is a portion of pension that is payable to members who were confracted out ol Ihe Siale
sacond Pension and accrved benalils in the scheme belween 6 April 1978 and 5 Aprl 1997, The LGPS {NI} was confracled out.

The GMP was intended lo approximately replace the Stale Pension whizh members were giving up, however the paymen! terms
of GMP are different between men and women. which was a censequence of the slate pension itsell being unequal al that lima,

On 26/10/18 the High Court ruled in the Lioyds Bank case thal equalisation for the effec! of unequal GMPs is required.

The eslimaled liabllily has been based on a typical Loacal Goveinment pension fund lo quantily the valve of fully indexing GMP's
in fing with CPlinltation for those reaching Second State Pension ogs afler 5 December 2018, This was calculated 1o be 0.3% of
the liabililies / defined benefit obligalion,

I-|Norlhern Ireland Civil Service Pension Arrangements

The Nerthern relond Civil Service Pension anangemenis are uniunded muiti-employer delined benelit schemes bul the Council is
unable ig idenlity ils share of the undeilying assels and lisbilities, The most vp to dale acluarial valualion was canied cut as al
31/02/201%, This valuation Is then reviewed by tha Scheme Actuory and updaled 1o 1eflect current conditions and rolled forword
to the reporling dale of the DoF Superannualian and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2019,

Guargnleed Minimum Pension [GMP) is a portion ol pension that was occrued by individuals who were conbracted oul of the
stale pension prior 1o 4 April 1997, Al presenl there is an inequality of benelils belween male and female members who have
GMP. Although the Government inlends 1hot GMP should be equalised. at presenl il is not clear how this equalisalion will be
implemented. In luly 2014 1he Government staled an inlention to develop lully considered proposals and te publish guidance
when ths work is compleled. bul no targe! dole was given. The impac! of any liabililies relating to the Councilis therelore
unceriain and no provision has been mode in Ihese financial stalemenls

by Bl Donated Assets Accounl

Analysls of Donated Asiels Account

The balonce of the Donaled Assels Accounl represents donalions received Ihat have vet fo be recognised as income, as they
have conditions allached fo them. which will require the donaled assels to be refurned. il condifions are not met. Duiing the year
three assels were donated to lhe Council wilh a value of £33,650.

Il Ccpilal Granls Received In Advance

Anclysls ol Capltal Granis Receipts in Advence Balance

The Council has no capital grants received in Advance

B Contingencles

The Arc 21 Joinl Committee has with the approval of ther parficipant Councils, entered inlo a Centingent Liability underlaking
with the bidding consolium in the procurement for the Residual Wasie Treaiment Piojec and Newry, Moume and Down District
Council has agreed the legocy Down District Council's share ol the contingent liability, Payments made if any in accordance with
this undertaking will be lunded by the porticipating Councils. No lurther information on this agieement can be disclosed due to
the commercial sensitivity of the procurement process



Newry, Mourne and Down District Council
Notes to the Financlal Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

I3 Other cash flow disclosures
L] Analysis of AdJusiments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficil on the provision of services

for noncash movements Notes 2018/19 2017/18
£ £
Depreciation 11 7.303,117 6,289,873
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sole
derecognilions) 11 4,537,798 4,783,539
Amortisation [inciuded with depreciotion above} - -
{Increase}/Decrease in inventaries (30,595) 28,570
{Increase}/Decrease in Debiors 60,059 {322,986
Increase/{decrease] in impairment provision for bad debis [(92,213) (5,737
Increase/{Decrease} in Creditors 1,183,988 375,608
Increase/(Decrease) in Interest Creditors - -
Payments fo NILGOSC 20 8,361,000 3,535,510
Carrying amount of non-current assels sold 8 312,234 587,645
AIC/WIP written off to Net Cost of Services 11 524,739 {76,199}
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions (1,194,699} 782,3%4
Movement in value of investment properties-included
above in Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale
derecognitions) (182,758)
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 21 - -
Confract Cosls B -
Confract Assets - -
Contract Liabilities N N
Deferred revenue = N

20,965,428 15,795,441

Adijust for itemns included 1n the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services that are invesling and financing

2018/1%

2017/18

Purchase of shori-term (not considered to be cash
equivalents) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, joint veniures and subsidiaries)

Proceeds from shorl-term {not considered o be cash
equivalents) and long-term investmenis {includes
investments in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries}

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and
inlangible assets

{85.694)

(696,122}

Capital grants included in "Taxation & non-specific grant
income"

(2,729,299}

{1.094,005)

95



] Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and short
term deposits and invesimenis {considered to be cash equivalents), net of outstanding bank overdrafis. Cash and
cash equivalents al the end of the reporling period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the

c

The cash flows from operaling activities include: £ £
Inlerest received 16,679 5,403
Interest paid 2,176,448 2,158,786
.} Cash flows from Investing Activities 2018/19 2017/18
£ £
Purchase of PP&E, investment property and intangible {15,472,204) [18,264,993)
Purchase of Short Term Invesimenis (not considered to be
cash equivalents) - -
Purchase of Long Term Investiments - -
Other Payments for Investing Activities - -
Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, investment property and
intangible assefs 85,694 696,122
Proceeds from Shert Term Investmenls {not considered to be
cash equivalents) - -
Praceeds from Long Term Investments - -
Capital Grants and Contiibutions Received 2,529,493 446,820
Other Receipls from Investing Activities - -
Net Cash flows from Investing Activifies (12,857,017) (17.122,051)

related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash Flow Statlement: Operaling Aclivilies

2018/1%

2018/1% 2017718 2016/17
£ £ £
Cash and Bank balances 1,091,386 645,630 5,271,112
Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 12,187 2,003,605 2,535,577
Short Term Investiments {considered to be Cash Equivalents) - - -
Bank Overdraft (217,976) (213,628) [(986,177)
185,597 2,435,407 4,820,512

2017/18




[} Cash flows from Financing Aclivities 2018/1¢9 2017/18
£ £

Cuash Receipls frorm Short and Long Term Borowing 11,000,000 10,000,000
Other Receipts from Financing Aclivities - -
Cash paymenls for ihe reduction of the ocutstanding liability relating to a finance
lease and on-Balance Sheet PFl contracts

{23.730) {43,326
Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowing {5.409,381) {5.307,145
OCther payments for Financing Aclivities & =

Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 5,564,889 4,649,52%

Bl Usable Reserves

=] Capilal Receipls Reserve
These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets which have not yet been used to
finance copital expenditure,

The Capilal Receipis Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by statule
as capital receipts, These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of
the gain/loss on disposal and posted out vio the Movement in Reserves Statement 1o the Capital Receipts Reserve.
The reserve is wrilten down when resources are applied fo finance new capital expenditure or set aside to reduce an
authority's capital financing requirement (or used for other purposes permitied by statule).

Capital Receipts Reserve Noles 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
£ £

Al 1 April - &

Movement

Disposal of Non Current Assets/Capilal Sales 85,694 696,122

Capital Receipis used to finance capital expenditure 3,11 {85,694) {696,122)

Capital Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI) 1972, however this seclion of the acl was
repealed under the Local Government Finance Act [Nothern Ireland) 2011. Councils should disclose details where
any of these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes. =

apito d ole U O]% D D18
L £

At 1 April 1,255,113 1.255.113
At 31 March 1.255113 1,255,113
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19 Other Balances & Reserves

Other Balances & Reserves (Eleclion Reserve) Notes 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
£ £

At 1 Apiil 240,000 -

Transfers between stalufory & other reserves & the General

Fund 4 120,000 240,000

At 31 March 340,000 240,000

This reserve is used to equalise {smooth) the cost of eleclions by building up a tund to cover the costs of fulure
elections by making contributions, as and when required, {0 the reserve.

I\l General Fund

This reserve shows the accounling cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepled
accounting practices, rather than the amouni io be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rales to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations: this may be dilferent from the accounling cost. The taxation position is
shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

General Fund Noles 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
£ £
At 1 Apnl 11,287,313 8,909,091
Applied Capital Grants 10,12 {2.729,299) {1.094,005)
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year o =
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 - -
Depreciafion and Impairment adjusiment 4 11,840,215 10,890,654
Stalutory Pravision for financing Capital Investment 4 {6.0446,000) [5,361,000)
Nei Revenue expenditure funded from capital under
statute 4,12 1.871,141 (81,745}
Surplus/{Deficit) on the Provision of Services CIES (13.110.315) {5.917.713}
Transfers between Stalutory and Other Reserves and the
General Fund 4 (120,000) {240,000)
Net movements on Pension Reserve 4, 20 8,341,000 3,535,510
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 3,4,11,23 226,540 {108,477)
Difference between finance and other costs and income
colculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculated in accordance with statulory requirements 33,418 {96.986)
Other Movemenis 254,588 852,184
At 31 March 11,847,501 11,287,313



Unuseable Reserves

] Capital Adjustment Account
The Copilal Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different amangements for
accounling for the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those

assets under statviory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses
and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings

from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures 1o an historic cost basis.

The account is crediled with the amounis set aside by the Council as finance for the cosis of acquisition, construction

and subsequent cosis.

The Accounl conlains accumulated gains and losses on Invesimen! Properties and gains recognised on donated

assets that have yet 1o be consumed by the Council,

The Account also contains revaluation gains occumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before | April 2008, the

date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains,

Caopita! Adjustment Account Notes 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
£ £
At 1 April 50,010,074 52,120,218
Applied Capital Grants 10,12 2,729,299 1,094,005
Unapplied Capital Grands transferred to CAA in year - -
Direct Revenue Financing 4,12 - -
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 11 {11,840,915) {10,890,654)
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Invesiment 4,12 6,046,000 5,361,000
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Copital under 4,12 {1,871,141 81,945
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Copital Sales 4,11 {312,234 {587,645}
Capital Receipts used fo finance capital expenditure 4,12 85,694 696,122
Other Movements 1,943,887 2,135,085
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund &
CAA lo finance capital expendiiure 12 - -
At 31 March 456,810,666 50,010,074

[ Revaluafion Reserve

The Revalualion Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of ils Properly,
Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets, The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated goins are;

- revalved downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

- used in 1he provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve conlains only revaluotion gains occumulated since 1 April 2008, ihe date the reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that dale are consolidated into the balance on the Capilal Adjusiment Account,

The purpose of this account is o build up a balance based on the revalualion {upwards or downwards) of individual
assels. All such revaluations {excluding impairment losses that have been debited lo Surplus/{Deficit) on the Provision
of Services are mirored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamenial principle of this
account that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognised. the balance

held on the Revaluation Reserve is writlen off to the Capital Adjusiment Account,

Revaluation Reserve Notes 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
£ £
Al 1 April 45,044,424 35,064,168
Revalualion & Impairment 11 5,602,151 12,117,341
Movemenls from associates & joint ventures &
Other Movements {1.911,548} {2.135,085)
Al 31 March 48,737,027 45,044,424
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Pension Reserve

£ £
AL T April (37.647,000) [ (34,019,000)
Net Movements on Pension Reserve 4,20 {8.3461,000) {3.535.510)
Revaluation & Impairment 20 3.830,000 {92,490)
At 31 March (42,178.000}) (37,647,000}

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the fiming differences arising from the different arangements for accounling for post-
employment benefits and for funding benefils in accordance with slatulory provisions. The Council accouns for post-
employment benefils in the Comphensive Income and Expendiiure Statement as benefits are eamed by employees
accruing years of service, updatling lhe liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and
investrment returns on any resources set aside o meet the costs

However, statulory arangements require benefils eamed fo be financed as the Council mokes employer's
coniributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is direclly responsible. The debit balance
on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shorifall in the benefits earned by past and curent employees
and the resources the Council has set aside o meet them. The statulory amangements will ensure that funding will
have been set aside by the time the benefils come 1o be paid.

Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund
balance from accruing for compensated absences earned bul not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave
enlillement camied forward at the end of the financial year. Statuiory araongements are expected to require thal the
impact on the General Fund is neuiralised by Iransters to or from this Accumuloled Absences Account

Accumulated Absences Account Notes 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
£ £

Al 1 Apiil [357,308] {454,294)

Difference between finance and other costs and income

calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs

calculaled in accordance with statutory requirements (33.618) 94,986

At 31 March {390.926) (357.308)

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

The Provisions Discount Rale Reserve covers the arangement, put in place by the Department under its amendment
o the 2017/18 accounis direclion {see DIC circular 17/18), to allow for miligation of the costs not allowed for by
Councils who had adopied the HM Treasury Cenlral Governmeni discount rate for long-term provisions such as
Landfill costs.

Subject to agreement with the Depariment, this amangement allows a councit 1o spread the cosi of the impact of
discount rate changes over a period of not more than é years,

O » D 0 » O U D i 018
£ £

Al Apri (852,184) -
Difference between finance and other costs and income
calculated on an accounting basis and finance costs
calculaled in accordance with statutory requirements (254,588) (852,184)
Other Movements - -
Al 31 March {1.106,772) {852.184)
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Significant Trading Operations

The Council considers ifs only significant frading operafion o be the provision of car parking facilities. The resulls for
this are disclosed in Note 2, namely Income of £723,797 and cosis of £616,901.

Non-finoncial crileria token into account in deciding whether rading operations are significant to the Council are:

- the importance of each individual Irading operation to demonsirating the achievement of Council targels and
improving performance.

- the exposure of {he Council fo service reputationol loss risk by providing the service

- whether the provision of the service is likely fo be of inlerest fo the Council's key stakeholders and iheir needs.

FLEN Agency Services

1. Newry BID Company Lid - Business Improvement Districts (BIDs) were an initiative established through the
Department for Communities which allow town cenires to establish action plans to bring forward additional
initiatives, services and projecis under a 8ID plan. Rale paying businesses within the delined BID area then vote
whether lo accept the plan or nol. If the BID is approved by a majority of the ballot received an addilional BID levy is
then inveiced 1o all businesses within the BID area to implement the agreed plan. The Council provides invoicing and
debt collection services io Newry BID Company Lid. During the year the Council raised invoices on behalf of the
company amounting to £336,224. Payments were made {o the company of £302,500. The company also reimburses
the Councils reasonable charges and expenses which amounted to £24,469 for the financial year under review, The
balance outsionding from the BID company's debiors amounied to £188,677 at 31st March 2019, This resulted in o net
amouni of debl held by the Council on behalf of the company at 31st March 2019 of £81,090, this balance is
included in Short Term Creditors. No fransactions other than the charges noted previously have been reflected in the
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement.

2. C.AN.N. is the abbreviation for Colloborative Action for the Natura Network, The Group consists of eleven project
partners. Agri-Food and Biosciences Inslitute, Argy!l and the Isles Coast and Countryside Trust, Armagh City, Banbridge
and Craigavon Borough Council, East Border Region Lid, Golden Eagle Trust, Institule of Technology Sligo, Monaghan
County Council, Newry, Mourne and Down District Council, Scottish Nalural Heritage, Ulster University and the Ulster
wildlife Trust, The project is funded by the Special EU Programmes Body {SEUPB). Newry Mourne and Down District
Councit {NMDDC) are the lead partners where they pay the salaries of employees and invoices. Claims for the
project pariners are made by the 1he individual organisations to SEUPB, The funding for all partners is paid info
NMDDC's bank account. The Council subsequently pays Ihis funding lo the project pariners. During this current year
NMDDC received €1,707,450 of grants from SEUPB on behalf of the ien project pariners and paid €1,548,450 to the
project partners, These Iransactions are not reflected in the Council's Revenue accounts. There was a balance of
€159.,000 [£136.416 stg) owing 1o the other project pariners at 31st March 2019.
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')l Related Party Transactions

3

A Related Party Transaction is a fransfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a
price is charged. Relaled Porty Transaction exclude fransactions with any other entily that is a related party solely
because of its economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms parl. A related party is
one that has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the olher party in making
financial ond operating decisions. This includes cases where the related parly enlity and another entity are subject to
commeon control but excludes providers of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade
Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the Council.

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial stalements are set oul below, where o
descriplion of the nature, the amount of the lransaction and the amount of the outstanding balance is as follows.
Related parly relationships where conirol exists should be disclosed irespective of whelher there have been
transaclions between the related parlies.

Councillors have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies, During the year ,the Council paid
for works and services amounting to £612,634 from organisations in which individual Councillors have an inferest. The
main recipient within this lolal is £448,879 fo Moume Heritage Trust .

The Council paid grants of £218,203 to a number of organisations in which Councillors represented the Council's
interests. All payments were made with proper considerafion of declaration of interests,

The Council incurred expenditure of £555,791 to other councils of which £44,061 was outstanding as at 31st March

2019.

The Council has recorded income of £251,321 from other Councils of which £70,789 was outstanding as at 31st March
2019.

Arc 21 ajoint commitiee organisation is o waste management group in Northern ireland representing councils in the
east of the province. The Council's contribution in the curent year was £188,821. The Council paid an additionol
£1.556,956 1o Arc 21 for various services provided during the year including the use of the Material Recycling Facility
and received income of £72,343.

Date of authorisation for Issue

The Chiel Financial Officer aulhorised lhese financial stalements for issve on e Seplember 2019.

102



